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Corporate Profile
NGIE

Established in Hong Kong, one of the world's most vibrant global metropolises,
Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited (“Guotai Junan International” or “the
Company” or “the Group” or “We") serves as a bridge to connect enterprises and
investors in China and the world. We provide channels for Chinese investors to
access international capital markets while at the same time enable international

investors to gain access to the dynamic growth of the Chinese markets.

We are a subsidiary of Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited (“Guotai Junan”),
one of the China's largest securities houses, predominantly owned by Shanghai
State-owned Asset Operation Company Limited, Central Hujin Investment Limited
and Shenzhen Investment Holdings Company Limited. Backed by the strong
operational support, we are the designated international flagship company of Guotai

Junan, serving as the gateway for international expansion of Guotai Junan.

Today Guotai Junan International enjoys a host of tremendous growth opportunities
and is well positioned to participate in capital markets expansion in Hong Kong. We
have unparalleled access to our controlling shareholder’s extensive business

networks, not just in China but globally.

Guotai Junan International is the first Mainland-owned securities brokerage house
with China Securities Regulatory Commission (“CSRC") approval to list its shares
through initial public offering (“IPO”) on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). Established in Hong Kong in 1995, we
provide our services in 4 core business areas: (i) dealing and broking in securities,
futures and leveraged foreign exchange, (ii) margin and other financing, (iii)
corporate finance, and (iv) asset management. By means of a sophisticated Internet
platform, we are able to provide our clients with comprehensive services on global
securities, derivative and leveraged foreign exchange trading, IPO subscriptions,
margin financing, stock quotes, market news and research reports, etc. Led by a team
of dedicated professionals who have in-depth knowledge and understanding of both
China and Hong Kong capital markets, we have established a solid reputation for
providing a wide range of high quality corporate finance solutions to our clients in

Hong Kong, China and across the world.

We have proudly provided our clients with a superb range of high quality financial
services through some of the most turbulent economic periods in the history.
Looking into the future, we will continue to expand and invest in our existing
platforms and customer profiles, and become a major regional financial services
conglomerate. We will commit ourselves to assist our clients in making proper
judgments in different market conditions while upholding our service commitment

with integrity, client focus, expertise and innovation.
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1995

1997

2001

2003

2007

2009

2010

Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited was incorporated.

Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited became a member of the

Stock Exchange and commenced business.

Guotai Junan Futures (Hong Kong) Limited commenced business.

Online trading platform for Hong Kong securities was launched.

Online trading platform for futures business was launched.

Our first SFC authorized fund: Guotai Junan Investment Funds — Guotai

Junan Greater China Growth Fund was launched

Online trading platform for United States securities was launched.

CSRC approval on China B shares trading qualification obtained.

CSRC approval for Hong Kong listing obtained.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited was incorporated and listed

at the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Guotai Junan FX Limited commenced leveraged foreign exchange

trading service.
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Financial Highlights
MBREE

For the year ended 3| December

BE+t-A=t-HLEE

2010 2009 Change
—g2-%F  —TTAF 29
(HK$°000) (HK$'000)
Audited Audited %
(FEx) (FExT) Bl
Income from dealing and broking BERELEEBRA 368,113 357,763 2.9%
Income from margin and other financing FREEMBERA 101,396 70,775 43.3%
Income from corporate finance TEREKA 126,412 74,446 69.8%
Income from asset management BEBERA 44,570 24,061 85.2%
Revenue from core business activities ZOEBWE 640,491 527,045 21.5%
Income from investment holding (Note 1) REEBKA (1) 11,826 56,325 -79.0%
Other income H g A 5,777 3715 55.5%
Total revenue Az 658,094 587,085 12.1%
Profit from continuing operations REKEEBRT 252,624 244,040 3.5%
Profit from discontinued operations (Note 2) B S F 1 A — 56,354 -100%
GEY))
Profit attributable to equity holders ARBIRERE A
of the Company At 7 250,685 298,307 -16.0%
Profit from core business activities (Note 3) ROEBRN (MEE3) 235,021 184,000 27.7%
Notes k3
[. Income from financial assets at fair value through profit and loss. L RATERABENERMEERA o

2. Profit from discontinued operations mainly represents the results of the fund investment z BRIEEEEKEFETEEERZ2SNFR
business which has been disposed of in late 2009. HEMBESREXBMNES -

3. Profit from core business activities represents profit from continuing operations after 3 RUEB R IR SRR E E R RE I

deducting income from investment holding and other income. ANEHFHEGEXHRN -

6 GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for

the last four financial years is set our below:

RESULTS
£ |

AREBRENFNTERFXEREELREHRR

oM :

Financial Summary

MR

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+-BLEE

2010 2009 2008 2007

ZE-BF _—TTHF _"TTN\F _—TTLHF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TAET TAET FAET

Total revenue i as 658,094 587,085 519,307 975,955

Profit before tax BR 7% A 288,407 271,848 213,024 363,942

Profit from core business activities  1Z%/0 3 7% 4 A 235,021 184,000 240,141 297,517

Profit from continuing operations 45 48 £ ‘& ¥ 7534 ) 252,624 244,040 210,428 300,320
Profit attributable to equity holders ZA A BIRXIERF B A

of the company & 1% A 250,685 298,307 126,045 385,428

Operating Margin
RN

4b6%

15%

10%

5%

0%

2010 2009 2008

2007

Revenue mix for core business activities in 2010
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* Dealing and broking & & 2 4%4
® Margin and other financing ff & R At B
* Corporate finance > ¥B1 &
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Financial Summary
B HE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BEHAR

For the year ended 3| December

BE+-A=+-BLEE

2010 2009 2008 2007

—E-BF _—TTNE _—TT\F -TTLHE

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FTERT FHET FHET FHET

Loans and advances to customers BERNEFHR 1,975,894 860,731 368,648 815,232
Cash and bank balances Re RIBITERS 441,631 460,284 586,527 582,489
Client trust bank balances EPEEEITER 5,874,971 5,679,243 4,175,794 4,593,060
Other current assets He RBEE 1,031,652 434291 485,326 605,046
Other non-current assets HEvERBEE 651,512 360,382 43978 98,042
Total assets BEBE 9,975,660 7,794,931 5,660273 6,693,869
Total liabilities BEEH (6,903,311)  (6609,673)  (4,625170)  (5774,209)
Non-controlling interests TR ER (6,428) (4,489) (2,402) —
Shareholders’ fund BEE & 3,065,921 1,180,769 1,032,701 919,660

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

2010 Annual Report



Affected by a series of macroeconomic events, the Hong Kong stock market
fluctuated significantly in 2010. The Hang Seng Index rose by only 5.3% for the full
year. However, | am pleased to report to you that during the first financial year after
listing which ended 31 December 2010, Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited
(the "Company") together with its subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group")

achieved remarkable growth in the core business areas.

Income of the Group increased by 12.1% to HK$658.1 million (2009: HK$587.1
million), of which income from the core business increased by 21.5% to HK$640.5
million (2009: HK$527.0 million). Profit after tax from the core business amounted
to HK$235.0 million, an increase of 27.7% over 2009. Although the core business
achieved growth, profit attributable to shareholders of the Company for this financial
year decreased by 16.0% to HK$250.7 million (2009: HK$298.3 million) due to the
disposal of the fund investment business by the Group in 2009 and the realization of

non-recurring income of HK$56.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2009.

The board of directors of the Company (the "Board”) recommends the payment of
a final dividend of 5 Hong Kong cents per share for this financial year. Upon approval
by shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the
dividend is expected to be paid around early May 201 1. As a result of the proposed
final dividend together with the interim dividend for 2010 of 2 Hong Kong cents per
share, dividends paid for the full year of 2010 amount to a total of 7 Hong Kong

cents per share.

2010 REVIEW

In the first half of 2010, the full-scale outbreak of the European sovereign debt crisis,
the increase in the deposit reserve ratio for three times in Mainland China and the
introduction of the most stringent control measure in recent years," $7B + 1§ ",
caused the Hang Seng Index to drop to a full-year low in the second quarter. In the
second half yearn affected by the second round of the quantitative easing
policy(QE2) implemented by the United States, whose scale far exceeded than that
expected, and driven by the accelerating appreciation of Renmibi, the market once
saw a strong rebound but subsequently declined again under the influence of such
factors as the tightening of macroeconomic control measures by Mainland China.
The fluctuation of the Hang Seng Index for the full year was almost 6,000 points,

with weaker momentum than that of most major stock indices in the world.

Chairman’s Statement
FEREE
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

In this volatile market environment, the Group maintained its good performance.
Our four core business areas, namely dealing and broking, margin and other
financing, corporate finance and asset management, achieved remarkable growth. In
particular, the growth of income from the asset management business reached
85.2%. Costin New Materials Group Limited (/R &M FHEBBR DA ) (2228)
sponsored by us became the initial public offering (IPO) project with the largest
increase in share price in the Hong Kong stock market in 2010. It was called the
“King of Stocks” by overseas media. The sharp increase in income from the margin
financing business was attributed to more funds invested by the Group after its
listing. This also demonstrated the allocation of funds after listing made by us based

on the market situation was correct and forward-looking.

DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited (“"Guotai Junan”), the controlling
shareholder of the Group, is one of the largest securities houses in Mainland China.
Being the only offshore institution established by Guotai Junan, we will rely on the
extensive sales network and customer resources of Guotai Junan in Mainland China
to expand the scope of financial services. Our development objective is to become
a regional international financial service company with full financial service
capabilities and at the same time become an overseas platform for Guotai Junan to
implement its international strategy and expand cross-border business. That is to say,
we will provide global investment services to customers within the PRC and will

provide opportunities for overseas customers to invest in the PRC market.

According to the development plan of the Group, we will continue to develop the
broking business. Our “one-stop” electronic investment platform will further cover
all major investment markets around the world (other than the A share market of
the PRC). We will continue to expand the margin financing business so as to
promote the growth of the broking business. We will expand the cross-border
corporate finance business and assist customers in Hong Kong, Mainland China and
other countries to pursue corporate finance and acquisition opportunities. We will
extend our asset management services to international investment funds seeking
investment opportunities in the Greater China region, and to develop our private
wealth management business. While developing new business and expanding the
scope of financial services, we will also further strengthen our customer base and
gradually establish a sales network for international institutional investors to enhance

the Group'’s core competitiveness.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2010 Annual Report

ERBATHRET  SERETMNERE
£ BMMEERLER BIEEMEL -
FEREMBE CEREREEER) DG
THELR HPEAEBEBEBKALRE
85.2% ' ZMRBEEREAMHEEFARA
A)(2228)% B2010F B AR M RE AN E
RARBRIPOIZR - HBINEBBART -
MBEEBRANABEREEARER LT
BMRTESEA - EHERTHMERTS
FRAEmE EmEESEENRHERERM
BRI -

REAE

SENZRBRREAZELESRNER A
(TBHREBR]) RTPEAEANEFAEZ
— ERERBFRERIIRILNE—HE - R
IR EEEZRR LRED B A EAMN SRR
MEFER MREBREEE - AMOER
BEERERAAAEEZAERBRKENNRIIEE
REBMBRBE LA AEKAEZELERER
LBEMNARBEREEBNRINTEG - W&
o RS AFERATPRESKICREN
R YARNEPRHESEDBEREAMNSR
BHKE -

RESENERRAE  AAKBERRELE
B —URETREYARE—SEERN
FEREMS (PRARTHRI)  RF K&
BNRARBERE - IMeERLEBHE
R AMBARBERCXBERY  HHE
B PEAMMNAMERN TP ERHORE
MHtERE  AAREREEEERGERE
ERTEBERENBRREES  TSHE
SRRLAMEEERY - EREHNXH -
RERRBEENRE  RAERE-—SRE
ZANEPAR  FrRUBERERERES
MHERR  RASENZLORSEN -

B

-



LOOKING FORWARD TO 201 |

In 2011, the global economy will see a slowdown in its growth, mainly because
developed economies, especially the United States, are still on the track of recovery
and can hardly restore steady and rapid growth in the short term. Besides, the
general high unemployment rates of developed countries, the European debt crisis
and the instability of global financial markets have created uncertainties about the
recovery of the economy. As for Mainland China, because of the high inflation
expectation, a moderate slowdown in the domestic economy has become a
consensus. However, being the starting year of the “12th Five-year Plan”, the increase
in the domestic demand, the development of emerging industries and the
improvement of the investment environment have generated new growth hotspots.
Therefore, we are cautiously optimistic about the growth of the domestic economy

of the PRC in 201 1.

In the coming vear, the Group will continue to adopt an aggressive while stable
operation strategy, strive to develop and expand our diversified operations and
maintain our good risk management, asset and liability management and cost control
tradition. Although the prospect of global economic recovery is still uncertain, we
are optimistic about the domestic economic outlook of the PRC and the prospect
of the Group which relies on the strong support from our parent company in the
PRC. We believe we are equipped with the favourable elements of capturing market
opportunities in both short and long term and also have the ability to generate

stable and attractive returns for our shareholders.
At last, | would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to our core groups - our

shareholders, customers and staff - for their full support and participation in the

development of the Group last year.

Dr. CHEN Geng

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 201 |

Chairman’s Statement
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Corporate Governance Report
EEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is committed to maintain a
high standard of corporate governance practices within the Group and has adopted
various measures to ensure the maintenance of a high standard. During the 6
months’ period from 8 July 2010 (when the Group was listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange) to 31 December 2010, the Company has fully complied with
the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
contained in Appendix |4 (the “Code”) of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The followings summarize
how the Company has applied the principles of the Code in its corporate

governance practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board believes that a well-balanced corporate governance structure will enable
the Company to better manage its business risks and thereby ensure the Company
is run in the best interests of its shareholders and other stakeholders. The Board is
primarily responsible for setting directions, formulating strategies, monitoring
performance and managing risks of the Group. At the same time, it also has the duty
to enhance the effectiveness of the corporate governance practices of the Group.
Under the Board, there are 3 board committees, namely Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. All these committees
perform their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of reference

and assist the Board in supervising certain functions of the senior management.

The Board

The Board is charged with promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective manner. Each director of the
Company (the "Director”) has a duty to act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company. The Directors are aware of their collective and individual responsibilities
to all shareholders for the manner in which the affairs of the Company are managed,

controlled and operated.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2010 Annual Report
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Corporate Governance Report

The types of decisions which are to be taken by the Board include those relating

to:-

*  Setting the Group's values and standards;
¢ The strategic direction of the Group;

*  The objectives of the Group;

*  Overseeing the management of the Company’s relationships with stakeholders,
such as Government, customers, the community and others who have a

legitimate interest in the responsible conduct of the Group's business;

*  Monitoring the performance of management; and

. Ensuring that framework of prudent and effective controls is in place to enable

risks to be assessed and managed.

The Board also acknowledges its responsibility to prepare financial statements for
each financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group. In preparing these financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2010, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors are
responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group. In addition, it is
acknowledged that the Board has the ultimate responsibility for the Group's internal
control system and, through the Audit Committee, the Board has reviewed the

effectiveness of the system.
The Board currently comprises a total of 8 Directors:

Chairman and Non-executive Director: Dr. CHEN Geng

Executive Directors: DrYIM Fung
Mr. LI Guangjie
Mr LI Sang, Edward

Mr. WONG Tung Ching

Independent Non-executive Directors: Dr. FU Tingmei
Dr. SONG Ming

MrTSANG Yiu Keung

“':A:l:
/|:|3F

TEE

EEER TIIHEBFHRE -

s BMUAKENEENRE
o HIRTAKEMREE I
o AKEMBE:

o ERARAEXHEBALAEE B
MEA - 2P HEREMARERE
BISENAETEREZEXRHNA

H,

o EHEEEBREMXRE R

o WERARBTEEMERNERREE
ARHEME R R -

EFENATARSUMBAE  BERRTE
gﬁﬁ&ﬂ%ﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁi N
BHE_T-TF+_A=+— EIJJ:EFWW
i%#&i’%ﬁv CEREEVERMERER

W& EHEE  DTMEEM 26 RE
TREESENEERUMBRE - EF8E
FERABUNEMERISELERIBRESE
FBRRNGEELE - EFTENERGHLE
IZW*BWI%/JE%EWE’];E THES

BRERZECERZAN A -

EZeRRAAH \RESAN

TREFATES: REEL

HITES BEEL
FHERE

RERE

BUFHOTES: BEXEBL
REHL

LREAL

B=ETEBREZERERAA
2010 F

13



Corporate Governance Report
TEERERE

The Board comprises 4 executive Directors and 4 non-executive Directors. Of the 4
non-executive Directors, 3 of them are independent non-executive Directors. In
addition, one of the independent non-executive Directors possesses appropriate
professional accounting qualification. There is no relationship between members of
the Board. Pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules, the Company has
received a written confirmation from each of the independent non-executive
Directors of his independence to the Company. The Company considers that all the
independent non-executive Directors were independent in accordance with the

Listing Rules throughout the 6 months ended 31 December 2010.

Full board meets in person no less than 4 times a year is required. Notice of at least
7 days is given for a regular board meeting so as to give all Directors an opportunity
to attend. Agenda and accompanying board papers for each meeting are circulated
in full to all Directors together with the notice of meeting. Senior management
executives may, from time to time, be invited to attend the board meetings for

making presentation and/or answering any queries that may be raised by the Board.

During the 6 months ended 31 December 2010, two board meetings were held and

the individual attendance of each Director is set out below:

Name of Director

BEspgs

Dr. CHEN Geng BREA 18 £
Dr.YIM Fung HEE+
Mr. LI Guangjie FHRNEE
Mr. LI Sang, Edward FHEEE
Mr. WONG Tung Ching ZERE
Dr. FU Tingmei BiExmt
Dr. SONG Ming REE L
Mr.TSANG Yiu Keung TR E
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EFERMMEMTES AR FNTEST - 1

ARFHTETED  BRRBUFRITES -
RN —RBUFRTESHEEEEX SR

Bl - EEERERBELNHER - BELT
HA RARERERBUFDTEEERR
REBUNARAR - RRAIRE - BBULFE
WITEERBELTHARBZE-Z—TF 1=
A=+—BILERHBET -

AARNEERATLRIANRBETER
# - EMEFEEARARD LR TR

HBMEEEEAREMELE - 58

ZREMENEENETS X HiE Q%Lﬂi
MIBEPR2REEEM  SHEBTHRAET
BeEANEEEeeH N LELRER

/BEEEEGMEHRNEMER -

REE-Z—
EEERTTMALSH
REHFWT -

TE+-A=1—HILAEA "
MELEFEALRE

Number of

Attendance rate

HESRRY HER
22 100%
22 100%
22 100%
22 100%
22 100%
22 100%
22 100%
22 100%



Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of the Board was established on 19 June 2010. The

Committee comprises only independent non-executive Directors:

Independent Non-executive Directors: Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung (Chairman)
Dr. SONG Ming

Dr. FU Tingmei

The Chairman of the Committee has professional accounting qualification. The
Committee will meet regularly to review all business affairs managed by the
executive Directors in particular on connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions, if any, to review the interim and final financial statements
before their submission to the Board and the annual general meeting for approval
and to review the effectiveness of the internal control and risk management system
of the Group. The terms of reference of the Committee aligns with the
requirements of the Listing Rules and the recommendations set out in “A Guide for
Effective Audit Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA™) and any updated thereof. A copy of the terms of reference

of the Committee has been posted on the Company's website.

During the 6 months ended 31 December 2010, the Committee met on 2 occasions
and up to the date of this annual report the Committee has reviewed the
consolidated financial statements, including the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, which was of the opinion that such reports were prepared in
accordance with the applicable accounting standard and requirements. The Audit
Committee has also discussed with the Group’s independent auditors and considers
the system of the internal control of the Group to be effective and that the Group
had adopted the necessary control mechanisms to its financial, operational, statutory
compliance and risk management functions. The individual attendance of the

Committee members is set out below:

Name of Director

BEEpR

Mr.TSANG Yiu Keung = Lt
Dr. SONG Ming REEL
Dr. FU Tingmei BExEL

meetings attended
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Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee was established on 19 June 2010. The Committee

currently comprises 3 Directors:

Independent Non-executive Directors: Dr. FU Tingmei (Chairman)

Dr. SONG Ming

Executive Director: DrYIM Fung

The responsibilities of the Committee include setting remuneration policy of the
Group and fixing remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the Board
as a whole in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association of
the Company. No Directors can determine their own remuneration packages. The
Committee will meet at least once a year to discharge its responsibilities in
accordance with its terms of reference which has been posted on the Company's
website. The Committee is provided with the sufficient resources to discharge its
duties. The Chairman of the Committee will report their findings and

recommendations to the Board for consideration and approval.

During the 6 months ended 3| December 2010, the Committee held one meeting
to review and discuss remuneration matters of the Group. The individual attendance

of the Committee members is set our below :

Name of Director

BExps

Dr. FU Tingmei FExEd+
Dr. SONG Ming REEL
Dr.Yim Fung B3

Nomination Committee
The Remuneration Committee was established on 19 June 2010. The Committee

currently comprises 3 Directors:

Independent Non-executive Directors: Dr. SONG Ming (Chairman)

MrTSANG Yiu Keung

Non-executive Director: Dr. CHEN Geng

The primary responsibilities of the Committee are, amongst other things, to make
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors and succession
planning for the Directors. The Committee did not hold any meeting in 2010.
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PROCEEDINGS OF THE BOARD AND THE RESPECTIVE BOARD
COMMITTEES MEETINGS

The Company Secretary will assist the Chairman of the Board and the respective
committees in setting agenda for meetings, and each Director of the Company is
given an opportunity to include any matters to be transacted in the agenda. Where
any Director is considered to be having a conflict of interest in any transactions, the
Director concerned will not be counted in the quorum of the relevant meeting.
Minutes of meetings of the Board and the respective board committees are
recorded in details. All draft minutes are circulated to all those present at the
meetings for comments before submission to the chairman of the meetings for

approval.

In addition, in order to safeguard the interest of individual director, the Company has

arranged directors and officers insurance for its Directors and subsidiaries’ directors.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

There is a clear segregation of roles between the Chairman and the chief executive
officer (*CEQ").This segregation ensures a clear distinction between the Chairman’s
responsibility to manage the Board and the CEO's responsibility to manage the
Company and its subsidiaries’ business. The duties of the Chairman and the CEO are
carries out respectively by Dr. CHEN Geng and Dr.YIM Fung. There is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship between the Chairman and

the CEO.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years. Such term is subject to his
re-appointment by the Company at general meeting upon retirement by rotation

pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company.

Corporate Governance Report
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its
code of conduct for securities transactions by the Directors. All Directors confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards as set out in the Model Code
throughout the 6 months ended 31 December 2010. The Directors had no
securities transactions of the Company during the 6 months ended 31 December
2010.

COMPLIANCE MANUAL

To ensure the Company operates according to the highest standards of ethical
conduct and professional competence, all management and staff, as well as Directors
themselves, are required to strictly follow the Company’s Compliance Manual which
places them under specific obligations as to the ethics and principles by which the
Company's business is conducted. With reference to the applicable regulatory
guidelines and other industry best practices, the Compliance Manual sets out ethical
standards and values on the topics such as staff dealing in securities, anti-money

laundering and personal benefits.

INTERNAL AUDITOR

The Company has an independent internal audit team, which plays a major role in
monitoring the corporate governance of the Group and providing objective
assurance to the Board that a sound internal control system is maintained and
operated by the management. The head of the internal audit team directly reports
to the Board and the Audit Committee on audit matters. By adopting a risk-based
approach to evaluate risk level on control environment, the internal audit team plans
internal audit schedules annually in consultation with, but independent of, the
management, and the audit plan is submitted to the Audit Committee for approval.
On a yearly basis, the head of the internal audit team will present a report and
express an opinion to the Audit Committee on the internal control environment of
the Group. The annual audit work plan covers major activities and processes of the
Group's operating business. Moreover, ad hoc reviews will be performed on specific

areas of concern identified by the Audit Committee and the management.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR
During the year ended 31 December 2010, PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed
as the external auditor of the Group. The remuneration paid/payable to the external

auditor is set out as follows:-

Services rendered

Fr iR At AR 7%
Audit services Z R 7%
Non-audit services* B RTS

* Non-audit services include listing fee amounting to HK$3.5 million

CORPORATE COMMUNICATION

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications with all
shareholders. The Company encourages two-way communications with both its
institutional and private investors. Extensive information about the Company's
activities is provided in its Interim Report and this annual report, which are sent to
shareholders of the Company. The annual general meeting provides a valuable forum
for direct communication between the Board and the Company's shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as Chairmen of the Audit, Nomination and
Remuneration Committees together with the external auditor are present to
answer shareholders’ questions. The annual general meeting circulars are distributed
to all shareholders at leat 21 clear days before the meeting. Separate resolutions are
proposed at general meetings on each separate issue and voting of which are taken
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules. Any results of the poll are published on the
Company's website. All corporate communication with shareholders will be posted

on the Company's website for shareholders’ information.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED AT

RESULT OVERVIEW

We are pleased to report to our shareholders that the Group achieved a promising
growth in the profit from core business activities to HK$235.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2010 (2009: HK$184.0 million), an increase of 27.7% as
compared to 2009. Without taking into consideration the one-off non-recurring
income from the mark-to-market gain in 2009, the profit from the continuing
operations only increased 3.5% to HK$252.6 million as compared to 2009 (2009:
244.0 million). The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company decreased
by 16.0% to HK$250.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009:
HK$298.3 million) as a result of disposal of its fund investment business in late 2009
from which the Group recognized HK$56.4 million non-recurring income for the

year ended 31 December 2009.

Following the listing on the Stock Exchange on 8 July 2010, we have applied the net
proceeds of approximately HK$1,667.3 million to strengthen our business, especially

in the following areas:-

[. The margin loan balance significantly increased by HK$1,306.5 million or
195.2% from HK$669.4 million as at 30 June 2010 to HK$1,975.9 million as at
31 December 2010. Due to the expansion of margin loan business in the
second half of 2010, the interest income from margin loan business increased
by 61.6% to HK$70.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009:
HK$43.7 million).

2. Bank borrowing in the amount of HK$500 million was repaid in July 2010
which reduced the finance cost incurred for bank loans and overdrafts by
20.7% to HK$4.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009: HK$5.2

million).

3. HK$77.8 million has been applied to invest in a three-year note issued by a
private company in September 2010 and the interest income from the notes

was HK$ 1.9 million for the year ended 3| December 2010 (2009: Nil).

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2010 Annual Report

BAMARBEMNBRER  AEEHE-Z
—ZF+ A=+ RALEFEARLERES
HE A KB RE23B.05EB T (ZTTN
F 184088 %) BZZETNFEER
27.7% - BEEREBHE_SENFEREN
BARHERE— MY E  —S—TF2HE
A HEFIRER3E%E2526HB AL (ZF
ThE 2440883 T) - BE-T-TF+
ZAZT-BILFE ARAERREAEN
BARAD16.0%E250.7TEB BT (ZEEN
F:298388%T) REATEER_ZT
NERRLERASREAERIRBEZE_FT
NEFTZAZT—BEFERBELCEHERA
56.4EBTT °

R-E-TFELANBEBZA LR - HA
R REE,6673BBETHABREARARE
BERMNES  BRREUTIE

1. ARERE#HHE-_T-ZTF~A=1H
)669.48 B4 T A 1812 In1,306.58 &
BILH195.2% 2 T —TFF+ A=+
—H®1,975.988ETL - R T —F
FTHEHFRENEBNER  BEZ
Z-SF+-A=+-HLFE KA
FREREBNMEWALN61.6%Z
JO5EEEL (ZETNF - 437HEE
TL) °

2. ARES0BEEATHRITEEER =T —
TFELAEE QHE-T-TFT
A=+ HLEFENEAERREX
BRERKNH D20 7%E41BEBT(Z
TTNF 5268ET) -

=

3. 7ISHEALKEANRKRE —RLAR
ARZZ-ZFNABTN=FHZ
B mMBE-T-TFTA=1T—H
EFEE  REZEBRNFEKARIIBE
BL(ZZTNF: T) o



Management Discussion and Analysis

MARKET REVIEW

After the unprecedented scale of direct government intervention and the
implementation of comprehensive stimulation measures since the financial crisis in
2008, the global market was still volatile in 2010. Concerns about the success of the
international rescue measures, the increasing government deficits and debt levels in
certain European countries, the downgrading of European sovereign debts credit
rating caused uncertainties to the financial markets, especially in the first half of the
year. As the governments continued to procure measures to support the economy,
the financial markets saw rebound in the second half of the year However, the path

for the overall economic recovery remains long and full of uncertainties.

In Hong Kong, the real Gross Domestic Product was up at 6.8% in 2010. Although
the unemployment rate came down, inflation rate was higher. Hong Kong continued
to position itself as an international financial centre. With the support from the
Mainland China, Hong Kong was working on becoming the offshore clearing centre
for the RMB. In July 2010, a supplementary Memorandum of Cooperation on the
expansion of the RMB trade settlement pilot scheme was signed by the People’s
Bank of China and the Hong Kong Monetary Authority. The Hong Kong's RMB
deposits hit RMB314.9 billion at the end of 2010, an increase of 402% as compared
to the balance of RMB62.7 billion at the end of 2009.

The Hong Kong securities market experienced rally during the year. After the strong
rebound in 2009, the market lost direction at the beginning of the year. Affected by
certain European market incidences, the market sentiment dropped to the bottom
by the end of May 2010.Thereafter, with the increase in IPO activities in Hong Kong,
the corporate earnings reflecting a sign of economic recovery and the
announcement of the quantitative easing measures by the United States
government, the market picked up in a good pace. The Hang Seng Index closed at
23,035, up by 5.3% from the beginning of the year. The Hang Seng China Enterprises
Index dropped by 0.8%, reflecting the tightening measures of the Chinese

government in fighting against strong inflation pressure.

In China, the Gross Domestic Product growth remained high and the inflation level
was high as well. The government has introduced various measures in tightening the
economic overheating, especially in controlling property prices, by means of
tightening the money supply. The stock market was affected by the concerns about
the macroeconomic control measures. The Shanghai Composite Index closed at

2,808, down 14.3% from the beginning of the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

While witnessing the opening up of the China’s capital markets, the strong demand
of the Chinese enterprises to go offshore for fund raising exercises and the needs
for offshore investments, we provide an investment and fund raising platform for our
clients to meet their needs. Our businesses are benefited from the strong sentiment
of the Chinese investors in offshore investments and the demand for the corporate
finance services. Our position as an international financial services provider was
further strengthened by means of public listing in Hong Kong. In February 2010, we
have been granted approval by the China Securities Regulatory Commission
("CSRC") to list in Hong Kong. The Group was listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 8 July 2010.

The Group's business can be divided into 4 core business areas: dealing and broking,
margin and other financing, corporate finance and asset management. The allocation

of the revenue from these core business areas is listed in the following table:-

£ q0)
BETEEATSHIFEM - PELRHHEN
BENBYBREFIMENTRE - HARE
PREt—EREREETE  URERENSE
2 - FANEBXERPEREERIMREN
BERARYEXBERGHNLET L - FR
BReBRSGHER  RANBLEBERE
ARLEMBNE—FTER - —FT-FTF_AF
FMETEEFEEERZEE ([TRER
S HERBELT - ARECR-_FT—FF
tANBEBRAERLT -

AEEOEBTHSROEROEHAS B
ERER  AESEGRE CEREREE
B o RAKEHLEH R MRS RS
W% -

2010 2009
—g-%5 —2ENE

HK$’000 % HK$'000 %

TER % TET %

Dealing and broking SN 368,113 57.5 357,763 67.9

Margin and other financing FRSH M EE 101,396 15.8 70,775 3.4

Corporate finance TERE 126,412 19.7 74,446 14.1

Asset management BEER 44,570 7.0 24,061 4.6
Revenue from REZLER

core business activities EEIEOL € 640,491 100 527,045 100
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(a) Dealing and broking

Amongst our core business activities, dealing and broking activities generate
over 57.5% of the core business revenue, and it is crucial to the success of the
Group. Our business is mainly conducted through Internet and thus we
positioned ourselves as an Internet service provider in this regard. In 2010,
85% of our brokerage business was executed through Internet (2009: 85%).
Currently, our online trading platform can support 8 international securities
markets, including Hong Kong, United States, Japan, London, Canada, Taiwan,
Shanghai B shares and Shenzhen B shares; 18 global futures markets and
leveraged foreign exchange trading. As we aim to provide a “one-stop” service
through a single platform, our Internet platform covers a lot of functions,
including securities and futures dealing, IPO subscription, margin finance
application, investment fund subscription, provision of market news and
research reports. Our platform possesses the characteristics of multi-

functional, stable and secure.

During the year, we successfully opened almost 10,000 new brokerage
accounts, while the Group’s client retention efforts were also successful as a
result of a range of client promotion schemes. 85% of the revenue was
generated from individual clients while 15% was from institutional clients. With
our strong foundation in China, 92% of our clients are from China. In addition,
our Research team and Investment Strategy team continued to deliver timely

and insightful information to our clients for their investment decisions.

(a)
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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During the year, dealing and broking business generated an amount of
HK$368.1 million to our revenue (2009: HK$357.8 million). A breakdown of

the income has been set out below.

FR BERELEBABMAT RO
HE3CSIEBATL(ZEENF : 367.8
BEEL) - BBRANDITEHIRT
YO

2010 2009
“E-BF —ZTTNF

HK$°000 % HK$'000 %

TER % FET %

Securities &7 290,849 79.0 312,145 87.2

Futures HE 56,749 15.4 32,555 9.1

Leveraged foreign exchange TERRSNE I — — —

Handling income FEE 20,514 5.6 13,063 37
Income from dealing BE R4

and broking activities EBEBA 368,113 100 357,763 100

The unclear picture of economic recovery, the intermittent news on European
sovereign debt problems and the determination of rescuing the economy by
various central governments and the measures in controlling inflation in China
caused volatility in the financial markets in Hong Kong. In 2010, the market
turnover increased by | 1% as compared to 2009. With the increasing number
of Chinese securities houses commencing business in Hong Kong and the
aggressiveness of the other securities houses and banks in tracing for business,
during the year, we were facing strong competitions in the business. Our
commission on securities dealing and broking decreased by 6.8% to HK$290.8
million (2009: HK$312.1 million).

However, the growth in futures business was promising. During the year, the
commission income increase by 74.3% to HK$56.7 million (2009: HK$32.6
million). We were also facing a continuing shift of market mix of the futures
business that the income from international markets accounted for 91.6% of
the income of futures business. In 2009, only 78.2% of the revenue was from

international markets and 21.8% was from Hong Kong market.
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(b)

Management Discussion and Analysis

The handling income also increased by 57%, achieving HK$20.5 million (2009:

HK$I3.1 million), which was a result of the increase in corporate action

activities and stock borrowing and lending activities in 2010.

We launched the leveraged foreign exchange trading service in late December

2010.We are expecting that more income will be generated in 201 |.

Margin and other financing

(b)

The income from our financing business increased by 43.3% to HK$101.4

million in 2010 (2009: HK$70.8 million). A summary is set out below.

BEENWED

FEENEMNST%E2056EEL (=T
TAF131BERT)  ZERIAR
ZE-TERATHEBRREBEE
BRI

FMR-Z-ZF+ - ARBEHERRA
SMEZER - RABRHR T ——FHE
BEZWA -

FREEMHE

—Z-TF - BZMNREXBAE RS
WA NA33%E1014BEBT(ZF
ZNF:708BET) - MEHIRT

Y o
2010 2009
—2-2F —EThF

HK$’000 % HK$'000 %

TER % TR %

Income from margin loans REAFREFTHKA 70,529 69.5 43,655 61.7

Income from IPO loans BRRAZEEREA 4,937 4.9 8349 1.8

Income from banks and others SR &z E ALl A 24,022 23.7 18,771 26.5

Income from held- BFEIHRERA

to-maturity investment 1,908 1.9 — —

Total interest income MEWA LR 101,396 100 70,775 100
With the Group successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in BEREERZ —Eéﬁtﬂ TEBE X

July 2010, we were able to procure sufficient funding in expanding our margin

financing business. The strong appetite for margin finance enabled us to put

more resources into this business than what we were planning at the time of

our listing. While the demand was only built since September 2010, our margin
finance income increased by 61.6% to HK$70.5 million (2009: HK$43.7 million).

The margin loan portfolio reached HK$1,975.9 million on 31 December 2010,
with an increase of 160.6% as compared to 2009 (2009: HK$758.3 million).
The average margin loan portfolio increased by 71.8% to HK$1,027.5 million

(2009: 598.1 million).

FRENET  BMEGTRRESE
AARBERK -MBHARBENE
AEREEMEZEBRATRENE
TEESMER - BEBREE =S
TENAREEEM  BEEMNFER
BEWAERE16%E705EEETL(ZF
TNF  437688EL) - ZT—TF+
ZRA=T—R HFERERHESE19759
BEAL B-ZTTNFIEMN60.6%
(ZZTNF : 75838 BBL) ° FHH
REFEAEINTI8%E1,027.50 88
TL(ZETNF - 508 1HEBTT) °
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED AT

(9

Owing to the strong competition in IPO financing market, we had to lower our
interest rate so as to remain competitive. As such, our income from IPO loans
dropped by 40.9% to HK$4.9 million (2009: HK$8.3 million), disregarding the

increasing number of IPO activities during the year.

During the year, the Group has made investment into a 3-year term note
issued by a private company in the amount of HK$77.8 million. The note is
expected to be held until maturity and the income for the year was HK$1.9

million.

Corporate finance

After the financial crisis in 2008 which suppressed the fund raising activities in
2009, there was a sharp increase in fund raising exercises in 2010. During the
year, there were | 13 new listings on the Stock Exchange, an increase of 55%
when compared to 73 new listings in 2009 (including 12 companies which
transferred their listings from the GEM Board to the Main Board in 2010,
compared to 4 companies in 2009). Equity fund raising (including IPOs) in the
Hong Kong market reached a record high of HK$850 billion, an increase of
32% (2009: HK$642 billion).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Our corporate finance business also made good progress in business and
returned a solid performance in 2010, with revenue increased by 69.8% to
HK$126.4 million (2009: HK$74.4 million). During the year, our corporate
finance team has been able to play key roles in a diversified range of deals,
including acting as sponsor for 4 IPOs, namely Directel Holdings Limited,
Costin New Materials Group Limited, Kingworld Medicines Group Limited and
Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited. The team was also appointed as
global coordinator , bookrunner, lead manager or underwriter for a number of
IPOs, among others, China Titans Energy Technology Group Co., Limited,
Zhongsheng Group Holdings Limited and China Auto System Technologies
Limited. The team also participated in a number of new and secondary share
placements. During the year, the team has participated in 28 equity fund raising
exercises. In addition, a new team of debt capital markets was set up in the
second half of the year and the team has completed 2 debt issues during the
year. Fund raised by the equity capital markets team and the debt capital
markets team amounted to around HK$3 billion and HK$!.3 billion
respectively. In addition, our corporate finance team has been engaged as
compliance adviser for 32 newly listed companies and has provided advisory

services in 8 financial advisory projects.
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(d)

(e)

Asset management

We derived our fee income primarily from management fee and performance
fee, which is linked to the asset under management (“AUM") and the returns
of funds, respectively. In 2010, we acted as fund manager for 7 public funds and
3 private funds (2009: 7 public funds and 3 private funds) as well as investment
advisor for | public fund and 8 private funds (2009: 8 private funds). Although
the AUM decreased by 9% to HK$3,855.2 million as at 31 December 2010
(2009: HK$4,236.6 million), management fees increased by 19.4% or HK$3.6
million to HK$22.3 million (2009: HK$18.6 million). Performance fee increased
by 311.8% or HK$16.9 million to HK$22.3 million (2009: HK$5.4 million),
reflecting the strong performance of the relevant investment funds under our
management or advisory. As a whole, the income from asset management

activities increased by 85.2% to HK$44.6 million (2009: HK$24.1 million).

During the year, the Group was appointed as investment advisor for a
Qualified Domestic Institutional Investors (QDII) collective investment plan
managed by our controlling shareholder Guotai Junan Securities Company
Limited, namely IR B R B E B/ LS A EEE 5T 2l (Guotai Junan Jun Fu
Xiang Jiang Collective Investment Plan). We are expecting that it will continue

to generate more revenue to us in the coming future.

Investment holding

The income from investment holding decreased by 79% to HK$ 1.8 million in
2010 (2009: HK$56.3 million). The decrease was contributed to the
recognition of a significant mark-to-market gain in financial assets amounting to

HK$55.5 million in 2009.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RESULTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

With net proceeds of approximately HK$1,667.3 million through its public offering
of 410,000,000 new shares on 8 July 2010, the Group's total asset increased by 28%
to HK$9,975.7 million as at 31 December 2010 (2009: HK$7,794.9 million). The
increase was mainly due to increase in loans and advances to customers of
HKS$1,115.2 million, increase in accounts receivable of HK$601.3 million, purchase of
investment properties of HK$!115.1 million, property of HK$104.1 million and

increase in client trust bank balances of HK$195.7 million.

The Group’s total liabilities as at 31 December 2010 increased by 4.4% to
HK$6,903.3 million (31 December 2009: HK$6,609.7 million). The increase was
mainly due to increase in accounts payable of HK$823.7 million. The increase in total
liabilities is partially offset by the repayment of bank borrowings amounting to
HK$500 million in July 2010.

As the Group recorded a net profit of HK$252.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2010 and received net proceeds of HK$1,667.3 million from its IPO in
July 2010, the Group's net assets increased by HK$1,887.1 million or 159.2% to
HK$3,072.3 million (2009: HK$1,185.3 million) as at 31 December 2010.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2010, the net current assets of the Group increased by
HK$ 1,597 million or 193.6% to HK$2,421.9 million (31 December 2009: HK$824.9
million). The Group's current ratio increased to |.4 times as at 31 December 2010
(2009: 1.1 times).

The Group had net cash outflow of HK$18.7 million (2009: HK$126.2 million) for
the year ended 3| December 2010 and the Group's bank balances amounted to
HK$441.6 million as at 31 December 2010 (2009: HK$460.3 million). As at 31
December 2009, the Group utilized HK$500 million bank borrowings from a
revolving syndicated banking facility of HK$700 million. Following the listing of shares
of the Company on the Stock Exchange on 8 July 2010, the bank borrowings have
been fully repaid in late July 2010. The Group also had available aggregate banking
facilities of approximately HK$550 million from authorized financial institutions in

Hong Kong, however, none of which was utilized as at 31 December 2010.

The Group monitors its capital structure in order to ensure the compliance of the
capital requirements under the Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules
(Cap.571IN) for its licensed subsidiaries and to support the development of new
business. All licensed corporations within the Group complied with their respective

liquid capital requirements during the year and up to the date of this report.

Other than the information disclosed above, there were no other equity or debt
instruments issued by the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PLANS

Following the Group's listing on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in July 2010,
2011 will be a challenging year for us to further expand our business. We will
continue to grow our brokerage business, by broadening institutional and retail client
base, by strengthening our Internet trading platform and by offering our clients with
access to global markets around the world. We intend to provide our clients with a

one-stop electronic investment platform to invest globally.

With the strong demand for margin financing, we will continue to put efforts into
expanding the existing margin finance portfolio and to satisfy the needs of our
clients. However, we are still insisting on a prudent approach in managing our loan
portfolios. In addition, we will be exploring the opportunity to develop other

financing activities.

Regarding the corporate finance service, we are expecting that fund raising activities
will continue to be active in 201 1. We will continue to pursue corporate finance

advisory and fund raising opportunities for our clients in Hong Kong and China.

For asset management business, we have been engaged as the investment advisor for
a Qualified Domestic Institutional Investor (“QDII") collective investment plan which
is managed by Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited in China. In addition, we
are working on the development of RMB denominated investment products and will

capture the opportunity once it is in place.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS,
INVESTMENTS

The Group has not made any material acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries and

DISPOSALS AND SIGNIFICANT

associated companies during the year. As at 3|1 December 2010 and up to the date

of this report, the Group did not hold any significant investment.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS AND GUARANTEE

As at 31 December 2010, the Company had provided guarantees in favour of a
financial institution in respect of trading limit of a wholly owned subsidiary engaged
in futures dealing and broking amounting to approximately HK$77.8 million (2009:

Nil). No asset of the Group was subject to any charge as at 31 December 2009 and
2010.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2010.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT AND CAPITAL COMMITMENT

The operating lease commitments and capital commitment were approximately
HK$ 115,000 (2009: HK$6,294,000) and HK$6.8 million (2009: HK$75,000)
respectively as at 31 December 2010.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2010, we have 167 employees in total (excluding our account
executives). Competitive remuneration packages are offered to employees by
reference to prevailing market rate and individual merits. Salaries are reviewed on
annual basis and discretionary bonus is paid on annual basis with reference to the
Group’s performance and individual performance. Other benefits offered by the

Group include mandatory provident fund scheme and medical and dental insurance.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group adopted stringent risk management policies and monitoring systems to
contain exposure associated with credit, liquidity, market, foreign exchange and IT

system in all its major operations.

(a)  Credit Risk

Credit exposure represents loans and advances to customer, accounts
receivable from brokers, clients and clearing houses, bank balances and client

trust bank balances which principally arise from our core business activities.

Margin and other financing:

The Board delegates to the Credit Committee the duties to monitor the credit
risk of the Group. Members of the Credit Committee include, inter alia, the
Chief Executive Officer, the Responsible Officers and the Financial Controller.
The Credit Committee has appointed a group of authorized persons who are
charged with the responsibilities of approving credit limit and margin limit of
each client. The Credit and Risk Management Department is responsible for
making settlement calls when the trades of margin clients exceed their
respective limits. Any such excess is required to be made good within 2 days
according to the deficiency report. The deficiency report will be monitored
daily by the Credit and Risk Management Department. Failure to meet margin

calls may result in the liquidation of the client’s positions.

The Credit Committee is also responsible for approval of stocks acceptable as
margin collateral and the margin lending ratio. The list of approved margin
collateral stocks will be reviewed and revised by the Credit Committee as

when necessary.
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The Group also employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate excessive

credit risk including:-

(i) In respect of collateral from margin clients, the Group's guidelines on the
acceptability of specific classes of collateral from its clients are basically
tighter than those required by its bankers. In particular, a certain haircut
will be used for the calculation of acceptable collateral values of margin
clients so that the Group has sufficient time to call back loan from its
margin clients before margin call from the bankers. No margin facilities

would be granted to the clients for their derivative positions.

(i) Maximum margin limit will be set on individual margin client in order to
avoid building up excessive margin exposure from individual margin client
and comply with the requirements of the Securities and Future (Financial

Resources) Rules (Cap.571N).

(i) Margin call will be executed by the Credit and Risk Management
Department if the total outstanding amount of a margin client exceed
either of the credit line or the acceptable value of margin stocks,
whichever is lower Force sell action will be taken if the clients fail to

settle the outstanding amount.

The Group also grants loans and advances to customers that contain an
element of risk in the event that the counterparties may be unable to meet
the terms of such agreements. The Group minimises such risk exposure by
performing detailed credit analysis of potential loan investment, and dedicated
investment professionals are assigned to oversee and monitor the performance
of the loan investment. These key investment decisions are also subject to

approval by the Board.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Loans and advances to customers including IPO loans for subscription of new
shares are normally settled within one week from the drawdown date. Forced
liquidation action would be taken if the customers fail to settle their shortfall

within specific period of tolerance after IPO allotment result announced.

For debt securities, external credit rating such as Standard & Poor’s rating or
their equivalents are used by the Credit and Risk Management Department for
managing of the credit risk exposures as supplemented by the Group's own

assessment through the use of internal ratings tools.

Dealing and broking

Accounts receivable from clients represents receivables from clients arising
from dealing in securities, which normally had a delivery-against payment
settlement term of 2 to 3 days. The Group allows a credit up to the settlement
dates of the respective securities transactions (normally within T+2 or T+3
days). All application for the credit limit must be reviewed by Credit Manager
and approved by any member of the Credit Committee. However, no credit
limit would be granted to the new clients. Credit and Risk Management
Department determines whether forced liquidation action is to be taken
against clients with overdue balances on case-by-case basis. The Credit

Committee regularly reviews the overdue balances.

The Group only accepts margin deposit in the form of cash for futures and
leveraged foreign exchange trading. No transaction is allowed to be executed
if the current position of the customer exceeds its trading limit. The margin
deposit placed and the aggregate of the required margin deposit of each
futures and leveraged foreign exchange contract is timely monitored by the
Credit and Risk Management Department. Margin call will be executed by the
on-site duty staff if there is a deficit with the margin deposit. Forced liquidation
of the client's position will be executed if the customer fails to meet margin

calls.
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Accounts receivable from brokers, dealers and clearing houses are placed with
large financial institutions which are governed by regulators including the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority (the "HKMA™) and Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Commission (the “SFC").

Asset management and corporate finance

Accounts receivable arising from asset management, corporate finance and
advisory services are trade counterparties with sound credit rating and/or
reputation. For the Group's bank balances which they beneficially own and
hold in their names, they are deposited in reputable, large commercial banks.
For the client trust bank balances which they hold in segregated accounts, they

are deposited in authorized financial institutions in Hong Kong.

Impairment and provisioning policies

The Group's credit and risk management policy requires the review of
individual outstanding amount at least monthly or more regularly depending on
individual circumstances or market condition. Impairment allowances on
individually assessed accounts are determined by an evaluation of the incurred
loss at balance sheet date on a case-by-case basis, and are applied to all
individually significant accounts. The assessment normally encompasses
collateral held and the anticipated receipts for that individual account.
Generally, impairment allowances will be provided when clients failed to meet
margin call requirements and clients’ collateral are insufficient to cover their

outstanding loan balances.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

Management Discussion and Analysis

Liquidity Risk

The Group’s operating units are subject to various statutory liquidity
requirements as prescribed by the regulators. The Group has put in place
monitoring system to ensure that it maintains adequate liquid capital to fund it
business commitments and to comply with the relevant Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules (Cap.57IN). As a safeguard, the Group has
maintained stand-by banking facilities to meet any contingency in its

operations.

Even in periods of high market volatility, the Board believes that the Group's

working capital is adequate to meet its financial obligations.

Market Risk
The asset quality of our margin client's margin collateral will deteriorate when
the market comes down drastically. The Group's exposure to underwriting

commitments will also be affected at times of volatile market.

The Group has established policies and procedures for monitoring and
controlling the market risk arising in the business. Stress tests will be

performed when necessary.

The Group timely monitor the performance of investment in financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss to mitigate the price risk.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group's principal operations are transacted and recorded in Hong Kong
dollars and U.S. dollars and the level of foreign currency exposure is relatively
minimal compared to its total asset and liabilities. Foreign exchange risk is
managed and monitored by our Financial Controller. For the leveraged foreign
exchange dealing and broking, stringent control over the position has been
adopted, hence, we consider that our foreign exchange risk exposure is

minimal.

(b)

(c)

(d)
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(e)  Operational Risk
Systems are installed to monitor availability and performance of various IT
systems and a team will act and report to the senior management in
accordance with the established procedures in the event of disruption,
instability and other situations which may warrant to trigger the contingency

procedure to protect interest of clients.

The Group maintains and updates the operation manuals of its major
operations on an on-going basis when regulatory or industry changes occur
We have also put in place competent compliance and internal audit functions
with their respective aims at detecting control points risks and recommending
policy changes as well as carrying out checks on statutory compliance and the

internal rules and regulations.
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Chairman and Non-Executive Director

CHEN Geng (BREL), aged 42, is the chairman and a non-executive director of our
Company. Dr. Chen is responsible for the overall strategic development of the
Group. Dr. Chen is the president and vice chairman of Guotai Junan and a vice
chairman of the Securities Association of China. Dr. Chen has over 20 years'
experience in securities industry and participated in the establishment of the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange and was the general manager of the listing division from
1993 to 1996. After joining | & A Securities Co., Ltd., Dr. Chen was appointed as the
president assistant and the general manager of the investment banking department
in 1996 and as the vice president and a director in 1998. Dr. Chen was appointed as
the vice president of Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited in 1999 and as the
president and vice chairman in 2004. Dr. Chen holds a doctorate in Economics from
the Zhongnan University of Economics and Law (R E BT &S BUA K2 ) and is a
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (7 Bl 3% fft & &£
mE).

Executive Directors

YIM Fung (I8 ), aged 47, is the vice chairman and an executive director and the
chief executive officer of our Group. Dr. Yim joined Guotai Junan in 1993 and joined
our Group in 2000 and is responsible for the overall business management of our
Group. DrYim has over 19 years’ experience in the securities industry. Dr.Yim is a
senior economist and holds a doctorate in Economics from the Graduate School of
the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences (1 Bl 4t &} 2P %5 4% ) and a bachelor
degree in Environmental Engineering from the Tsinghua University (5 % K &) . Dr.
Yim is also a director of Guotai Junan Holdings Limited and Guotai Junan Financial

Holdings Limited which are the controlling shareholders of the Company.

LI Guangjie (E¥A) , aged 42, is an executive director and the head of the sales
house team of our Group. Mr. Li joined our Group in November 2001 and is
responsible for the supervision and management of the Group's sales team. He has
over |9 years' experience in accounting, audit, taxation and asset appraisal. Mr. Li
started his career at Shenzhen Jinpeng Certified Public Accountants CE Y| & I & &t
BIEFFT) as the deputy head of appraisal department. Mr. Li was the finance
director from 2001 to 2008. Mr. Li holds a bachelor degree in Economics from the
Shenzhen University GRYIIKXE2) and a master degree in Economics from the Central
University of Finance and Economics (F REFAE K £) . He is also an economist and
a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (@ B3 flt & &+
BM1% &) and a member of the Chinese Certified Tax Agents Association (F Bl 3% fff
BAEiHE).
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LI Sang Edward (Z4) , aged 47, is an executive director and the head of legal and
compliance of our Group. Mr. Li joined our Group in May 2007 and is responsible
for the legal, compliance and company secretarial matters of our Group. Mr. Li has
over |8 years' of experience in legal and financial services. He holds a master degree
of Laws in Corporate and Financial Law from the University of Hong Kong, a master
degree in Corporate Finance from the Hong Kong Polytechnics University and a
bachelor degree in Law from the University of London. Mr. Li admitted as a solicitor

in Hong Kong and England and Wales in 1995.

WONG Tung Ching (4%, aged 39, is an executive director and the head of the
corporate finance and ECM divisions of our Group. Mr.Wong joined our Group in
October 2000 and is responsible for the overall business and marketing matters of
corporate finance and equity capital markets business of our Group. Mr. Wong
obtained a master degree in Business Administration from the University of
Lincolnshire & Humberside (now known as the University of Lincoln) in 2001 and a
higher diploma in International Trading from the Shenzhen University GRIIAE ) in
1992.

Independent Non-executive Directors

FU Tingmei ({8£3%) , aged 44, is an independent non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Fu was appointed a Director on |9 June 2010. Mr. Fu has extensive
experiences in investment, finance, law and business management. Between 1992
and 2003, he conducted many corporate finance transactions in several investment
banking firms based in Hong Kong, including serving as a director of Peregrine
Capital Limited, and a deputy managing director and subsequently a managing
director of BNP Paribas Peregrine Capital Limited. Mr. Fu is currently engaged in
private investment business. He is currently also an independent non-executive
director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (stock code: 392) and CPMC
Holdings Limited (stock code: 906), both listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Fu
graduated from the University of London with a master’s degree and a doctorate

degree in Law in 1989 and 1993, respectively.
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SONG Ming (R #) , aged 49, is an independent non-executive director. Dr. Song has
over |8 years' experience in research of bank regulation and management, financial
market, derivatives and macroeconomics. Between 1991 and 1997, Dr. Song was the
Associate Professor (tenured) and Assistant Professor at Department of Economics,
Cleveland State University. Dr. Song is the director of Centre for China Financial
Research (CCFR) at the University of Hong Kong since 2001 and the Professor and
Associate Professor (tenured) at Faculty of Business and Economics of the
University of Hong Kong since 1997. Dr. Song holds a doctorate degree in
Economics from Ohio State University, a master degree of Science in Mathematics
from Huazhong University of Science and Technology (FEFR B K &) and a
bachelor degree of Science in Mathematics from Zhejiang University G )T KE3) .
Dr. Song was awarded as the top 500 economists around the world according to
2002 Thomson's ranking. Dr. Song also serves on the editorial boards of several
financial research journals such as China Financial Research and Financial Economics
Journal. Dr. Song is appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
United Laboratories International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 3933) since May
2007.

TSANG Yiu Keung (& #5%) , aged 57, is an independent non-executive director. Mr.
Tsang is a professional accountant and a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Mr. Tsang was with
KPMG for more than 27 years, where he was a senior banking partner until he
retired from the firm in 2003. Mr. Tsang is an independent non-executive director
and the chairman of the audit committee of L. K. Technology Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 558), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, and CITIC Bank International
Limited, a licensed bank in Hong Kong and CITIC International Financial Holdings
Limited. Mr. Tsang holds a higher diploma in Accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The Directors present their report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group") for the year
ended 3| December 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in securities, commodities and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and

broking, margin and other financing, corporate finance and asset management.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 are set out in the

consolidated income statement on page 56 of this annual report.

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$0.02 per share, totalling
HK$32,800,000 and proposed the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.05 per share,
totalling HK$82,000,000 to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the company on 28 April 201 1. The dividend will be payable on or
about 9 May 201 I.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Detailed segment information in respect of the Group's revenue and segment
results are shown in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements on pages |18 to

120.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of
the Group for the last four financial years ended 3| December 2010 is set out on

page 7 and 8 of this annual report.

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year are set out in note || to the consolidated financial statements which is set out

on page |29 of this annual report.

A deficit of approximately HK$3,509,000 arising as a result of an independent
valuation of the Group's land and buildings as at 31 May 2010 carried out by
Cushmeen & Wakefield has not been incorporated in the Group's consolidated

financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010.
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PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in the note 22 to the consolidated

financial statements which is set out on pages 146 and 147 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements which is set out on page I5|

of this annual report.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in the section of “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity”
and note 26 in the consolidated financial statements on page |51 of this annual
report. As at 31 December 2010, the Company's reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of Section 79B of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap.32), amounted to HK$85,119,000 of which 82,000,000

has been proposed as final dividend for the year.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations amounting to
HK$1,246,300.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the revenue attributable to the five largest
customers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue.
The Group is a provider of financial services. In the opinion of the Board, it is

therefore of no value to disclose details of the Group's suppliers.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the issuer’s share capital) had any

beneficial interest in the Group's 5 largest customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2010

other than as an agent for the clients of the Group.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:-

Chairman and Non-executive Director

Dr. CHEN Geng (appointed on 19 June 2010)

Executive Directors

Dr.YIM Fung (appointed on 19 June 2010)
Mr. LI Guangjie (appointed on 19 June 2010)
Mr. LI Sang, Edward (appointed on 19 June 2010)
Mr.WONG Tung Ching (appointed on 19 June 2010)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. FU Tingmei (appointed on 19 June 2010)
Dr. SONG Ming (appointed on 19 June 2010)
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung (appointed on 19 June 2010)

LISTING OF SHARES OF THE COMPANY

The shares of the Company have been successfully listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 8 July 2010. The net proceeds (after deduction of related
issuance costs) from the Company’'s IPO pursuant to which 410 million shares were
issued at a price at HK$4.3 per share amounted to approximately HK$1,667.3
million. The usage of net proceeds are set out on page 20 of this annual report. The
total number of shares of the Company as at 3|1 December 2010 was 1,640,000,000

shares which are all ordinary shares.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTEREST IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2010, the interests and short positions of the Directors or their
associates in the share capital of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO™) which
have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)

were as follows:

(@) Interests in associated corporations
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(a) REBZEMNED

Name of Percentage of

Long/short associated Nature of Number of issued shares

Name of director positions corporations interest shares ERITR®G

EEns R/KR R AR B BmME BB BOk

YIM Fung (Note) Long Guotai Junan Fund Interest of a 2,010,000 20.1%
i () RE Management Limited controlled corporation

BERELETERE
ARAE

Note: Dr.YIM Fung,Vice Chairman, executive director and chief executive officer, holds

92% equity interests in Best New Management Limited, is deemed to have an
interest in the 20.1% equity interest held by Best New Management Limited in

Guotai Junan Fund Management Limited, a subsidiary of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 3| December 2010, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations which had to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director has a service contract with the Company which is for a duration that
may exceed 3 years or which requires the Company to, in order to terminate such
contract, give a notice period of more than | year or pay compensation or make

other payments equivalent to more than | year's emolument.

Details of Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial

statements which is set out on pages 156 to 159 of this annual report.

In accordance with Article 104 of the Articles of Association of the Company, every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
At each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if
their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to one-
third, shall retire from office and be eligible for re-selection. Accordingly, Mr. LI
Guangjie, Mr. LI Sang, Edward and Mr. WONG Tung Ching shall retire by rotation.
They will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Dr. Fu
Tingmei, Dr. Song Ming and Mr. Tsang Yiu Keung and as at the date of the annual
report, still considers them to be independent. Generally, the term of office for each
independent non-executive Director is for a period of 3 years, and all are subject to

retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's Articles and Association.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its

subsidiaries was a party during the year

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted its share option scheme on 19 June 2010 (the “Share
Option Scheme™) and shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years from that
date. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to grant options to the eligible
participants in recognition and acknowledgement of their contributions made or to
be made to the Group. Under the Share Option Scheme, the Board may offer to
grant an option to any Director or employee, or any advisor, consultant, suppliers,

customers or agents.

The maximum aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company at any time shall not

exceed thirty percent (30%) of the shares in issue from time to time.
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The total number of shares which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed ten percent (10%) of the shares in issue immediately following

completion of the Company's IPO, being 164,000,000 shares.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted or to be granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme or any other share
option scheme of the Group to each eligible participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any |2-month period up to and including the date of
grant of the options shall not exceed one percent (1%) of the total number of

shares in issue.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular option granted under
the Share Option Scheme shall be determined by the Board provided that it shall
not be less than the highest of:-

(i)  the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily

quotation sheet on the date of grant,

(i) the average of closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately

preceding the date of grant, and
(i) the nominal value of a share.

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by
way of consideration for the grant. Subject to any condition or restriction which may
be imposed by the Board when granting the options and other provisions of the
Schemes, an option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during the option period. The option period during
which an option may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has

been granted.

For the year ended 3| December 2010 and up to the date of this report, no option
was granted by the Company under the Share Option Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as the Share Option Scheme disclosed above, for the year ended 31 December
2010, the Company or any of its subsidiaries has not signed any agreements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debt securities (including debentures) of, the Company or any other body corporate
and none of the Directors, their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any

rights to subscribe for securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSON’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2010, the following persons (not being a Director of our
Company) have interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company which have been disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company

EEBARONEEENERN
B XN ERER B RES  BEZT—

TEL-A=T—BLLFE  RARAZEER
MEBARBERTHHE  NEEFRBER
AL B AT () H At VA B B9 B 4 SR B 75 7 55
(BREER) METN % ARB318HMN
TF& - MEERBRRREFHOEMEERN
HEITREEML ST -

FERRREMATRRG RERRG
MEZRKXR
RZZB-ZF+-A=+—H THALE
FARBES) RAR RN RN RAEBK N
BERBES LR GROIEXVEEE2RID
MEXEAARARE  IREFFRAEH
I 3361 « IR EPIARE A DR AR
ENBRMANEBRIARMT :

XRAFEREE01ETHEER

Approximate percentage of
issued share capital
of the Company

Number of shares FRAREBRITRAE
RDHBE BRBEDH
Long Short Long Short
Name of shareholders positions positions positions positions
BREHE R KRR =) KRR
Guotai Junan Holdings Limited BREZERER DA 1,230,000,000 Nil & 75% Nil #&
Guotai Junan Financial BRE L2 ER
Holdings Limited (Note) BRAAE (FIzE) 1,230,000,000 Nil % 75% Nil 4
Guotai Junan Securities BREREFRN
Co., Ltd (Note) BRAR (M) ,230,000,000 Nil 4 75% Nil %

Note:  Guotai Junan Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Guotai Junan Financial Holdings
Limited which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Guotai Junan Securities Co,,
Ltd. Accordingly, Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited and Guotai Junan Securities
Co,, Ltd are deemed to have the same interest in the shares of the Company as

Guotai Junan Holdings Limited.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, the Company has not been
notified by any persons (other than Directors or the chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Save as the continuing connected transactions disclosed below, no contracts concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of business of

the Company or its subsidiaries were entered into or existed during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS
The following is a summary of the continuing connected transactions of the Group

entered into during the year before the listing date of 8 July 2010:-

(@) On 17 June 2010, a cooperation agreement was entered between Guotai
Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited (“Guotai Junan”)
whereby Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited would maintain a China
B share trading account with Guotai Junan and place orders on behalf of its
customers to Guotai Junan. Guotai Junan would then execute the orders using
its China B shares trading platform. The total amounts of commissions paid by
Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited under the cooperation
agreement for the three years ending 31 December 2012 should not exceed
HK$6.0 million, HK$6.6 million and HK$7.26 million respectively. The total
commission paid to Guotai Junan for the year ended 31 December 2010 was
HK$5,867,000 which is also set out in Note 32(a)(i) in the consolidated

financial statements on page 165 of this annual report.
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(b) On |7 June 2010, a service agreement was entered between Guotai Junan

(Hong Kong) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and Guotai
Junan Consultancy Services (Shenzhen) Co., Limited whereby Guotai Junan
Consultancy Services (Shenzhen) Co., Limited would provide consultancy
services relating to project management and economic information as well as
marketing and planning to Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited. The total
amount of consultancy fee paid to Guotai Junan Consultancy Services
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited under the service agreement for the three vyears
ending 31 December 2012 should not exceed HK$9.6 million, HK$12 million
and HK$15 million respectively. The total consultancy fee paid to Guotai Junan
Consultancy Services (Shenzhen) Co., Limited for the year ended 31
December 2010 was HK$9,600,000 which is also set out in Note 32(a)(ii) in

the consolidated financial statements on page |65 of this annual report.

On 17 June 2010, a supplemental investment management agreement was
entered into between Guotai Junan KS Select Equity Fund (“KS Fund”) and
Guotai Junan Fund Management Limited, a supplemental margin trading
agreement was entered into between the KS Fund and Guotai Junan Securities
(Hong Kong) Limited, a supplemental investment management agreement was
entered into between Guotai Junan Funds SPC (for the account of Guotai
Junan Harvest China Fund Segregated Portfolio) (“SPC Fund”) and Guotai
Junan Assets (Asia) Limited and a supplemental margin trading agreement was
entered into between SPC Fund and Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong)
Limtied. Under the said supplemental agreements, Guotai Junan Securities
(Hong Kong) Limited will provide securities trading services and margin
facilities to both the KS Fund and SPC Fund. Guotai Junan Assets (Asia)
Limited will act as the investment manager for the SPC Fund and Guotai Junan
Fund Management Limited will act as the investment manager of KS Fund.The
total amounts of aggregated fee paid by the KS Fund and SPC Fund for the
three years ending 31 December 2012 should not exceed HK$65 million,
HK$67.2 million and HK$69.84 million respectively. The total fees paid to the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 was HK$18,531,000 which are
also set out in Note 32(a)(iii) — (xi) in the consolidated financial statements on

page |65 of this annual report.
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The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed and

confirmed that the continuing connected transactions were entered into:-
(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to the Group than

terms available to/from independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in interests of the shareholders of the Company as a

whole.

In accordance with paragraph 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Directors engaged the
auditor of the Company to report on the above mentioned continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagement
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Review of Historical Financial
Information” ("HKSAE 3000") and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor's
letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”

("PN740") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has reported to the Directors in accordance with HKSAE 3000 and
with reference to PN740 that the transactions:-

(i)  have been approved by the Board of the Company;
(i) are in accordance with the pricing policies of the Company;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements governing

such transactions; and

(iv) have not exceeded the relevant CAPs disclosed in the listing prospectus of the

Company dated 25 June 2010.
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The following is a summary of the continuing connected transaction of the Group

entered into during the year after the listing date of 8 July 2010:-

On Il August 2010, an advisory services agreement was entered between Guotai
Assets (Asia) Limited and Guotai Junan whereby Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Limited
was appointed as an investment advisor for a Qualified Domestic Institutional
Investors (QDII) collective investment plan (the “QDII Scheme”) managed by Guotai
Junan, namely IR E L E BB LSS EEE T2l (Guotai Junan Jun Fu Xiang
Jiang Collective Investment Plan). Guotai Junan would pay 50% of the management
fee income received from the QDI Scheme less incurred expenses, if any, as
advisory fee to Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Limited for its advisory services provided
to Guotai Junan. No advisory fee income was earned from Guotai Junan for the year
ended 31 December 2010. As a result, the continuing connected transaction was
exempted from the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’

approval requirement under Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESSES
As at 31 December 2010, none of the Board members of the Company and their
associates had any interests in an entity whose business competes or is likely to

compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company’s business.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company's total issued share capital

was held by the public as at the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company's corporate governance principles and practices are set out in the

Corporate Governance Report on pages 12 to |9 of this report.
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AUDITOR
The consolidated financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,

who will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be

held on 28 April 201 I.

On 9 March 201, the Board resolved to propose the appointment of Ernst & Young,
Certified Public Accountants, as the auditor of the Group for the year of 201 | to fill
the vacancy following the retirement of PricewaterhouseCoopers and to hold office
until the next annual general meeting of the Company, subject to the approval of
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held

on 28 April 201 1.

By order of the Board
CHEN Geng

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 201 |
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB S

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Guotai Junan International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group™) set
out on pages 56 to 170, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 December 2010, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,

and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any

other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements

are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2010, and of
the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance

with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 9 March 201 |

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Income Statement

mERER

For the year ended 3| December

BEt-RA=t-HLFE

Note 2010 2009
B & —B-2F —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Continuing operations HEKEXHB
Revenue Y 2a 5 652,317 583,370
Other income HE A 5 5,777 3715
Revenue and other income Wogs R B A A 658,094 587,085
Staff costs BTIHA 6 (148,114) (140,455)
Commission to accounts executives EPEERe (55,516) (60,244)
Other commission expenses Hitn A& (36,306) (30,024)
Performance fee expenses FHRERX (10,661) —
Depreciation neE N (19,208) (10611
(Impairment charge)/ write back of provision s CRERY) /
for accounts receivable BERD 18(d) (10,006) 1,847
Other operating expenses H &R 6 (85,734) (70,582)
292,549 277,016
Finance costs RE A 6 (4,142) (5,168)
Profit before income tax BT S AR 7 6 288,407 271,848
Income tax expense PG T 5 7 (35,783) (27,808)
Profit for the year from continuing operations IFERKE XK FRNER 252,624 244,040
Discontinued operations CRIEREER
Profit for the year from discontinued operations B 4% |F 45 & ¥ 75 & N )4 8 = 56,354
Profit for the year FRHEA 252,624 300,394

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

2010 Annual Report



Consolidated Income Statement

mEWER

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-RA=t-HLFE

Note 2010 2009
GE —g-8F  -TIAS
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TR
Attributable to: ATNEIBEN
Equity holders of the Company AARIBRERE A 250,685 298,307
Non-controlling interests R ER 1,939 2,087
252,624 300,394
Dividends ) 9 114,800 150,000
Earnings per share for profit from continuing FARERRAEAERGREEE
operations attributable to equity holders REEBBINEREF
of the Company
— Basic and diluted (HK$) —EWREE () 10 17.5 cents 19.7 cents
Earnings per share for profit attributable FARERHEARGRAN
to equity holders of the Company BREF
— Basic and diluted (HK$) —EWREE (Br) 10 17.5 cents 24.3 cents

The notes on pages 65 to 170 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

RERERER

For the year ended 3| December

BEt-RA=t-HLFE

2010 2009
—2-2F —ZTNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Profit for the year FRE M 252,624 300,394
Other comprehensive income: Hih2EYE
Change in fair value of available-for-sale AHEERENATE
investments — 3712
Currency translation differences HNE R IR ERE = (335)
Reclassification adjustments ENOBRAE
— Release upon disposal of available-for-sale —RHERAHEE
investments RER R — (3616)
Other comprehensive income for the year, FREMEEKE
net of tax HIBRT1E — (239)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRNE2HEKHEHE 252,624 300,155
Attributable to: AT R IERELS -
Equity holders of the Company RARIRERE A 250,685 298,068
Non-controlling interests R E R 1,939 2,087
252,624 300,155

The notes on pages 65 to 170 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
meEEEAEXR

As at 3| December

W+=A=+-8
Note 2010 2009
s —2-%F —2RhF
Restated
&7
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET
ASSETS £E
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB K&E [ 450,401 354,719
Investment properties REME 12 115,055 —
Intangible assets BEEE 13 2,823 2,823
Other assets Hth & B 14 2,870 2,840
Deferred tax assets EXERIBEE I5 2,530 —
Held-to-maturity investments BEINSEE 16 77,833 —
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 651,512 360,382
Current assets RBEE
Loans and advances to customers EFREPER |7 1,975,894 860,731
Accounts receivable FEY 3K IR 8 935,583 334,262
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables ENRE  HeREMEKZKIE 19 11,970 7,103
Amount due from the intermediate
holding company FEW AR R A R RIE 32(b) — 359
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss EAFEFTABENEHEE 20 84,099 92,567
Client trust bank balances EPEARTHER 21 5,874,971 5,679,243
Cash and bank balances Be MR1TES 21 441,631 460,284
Total current assets REEERAH 9,324,148 7,434,549
Total assets EERE 9,975,660 7,794,931
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES BEEKkEE
Share capital ELEN 26(a) 164,000 —
Share premium B fn 5 (8 26(a)(v) 2,771,707 —
Other reserve Hith 26(b) (1,236,460) 31,980
Proposed final dividend BEARHRE 9 82,000 —
Retained earnings REBEBH 1,284,674 1,148,789
Equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company AREERFEAREER 3,065,921 1,180,769
Non-controlling interests FEERER 6,428 4,489
Total equity e 3,072,349 1,185,258

E=ETEBEZERERAR 59
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

mEEEREXR

As at 3| December

R+=ZA=+-H

Note 2010 2009
B &% —E-ZF “EENE
Restated
Egdl
HK$’000 HK$'000
TAER TAET

Non-current liabilities *RBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIEHIEAE I5 1,056 —

Current liabilities REBEE

Bank borrowings RITIER 25 — 500,000
Amount due to the ultimate holding company JE 7 B SR 12 IR 2 Bl R IE 32(b) — 578
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries i ANIE o) =PNCIP/ ¢ ] 32(b) — 645
Other payables and accrued liabilities Hofth & - 308 R FEET KA 24 106,161 138,351
Current income tax liabilities JESRR 17,154 14,884
Accounts payable JE < IR 23 6,778,940 5,955,215
Total current liabilities RBAEAE 6,902,255 6,609,673
Total liabilities EEAR 6,903,311 6,609,673
Total equity and liabilities Bk aBEAR 9,975,660 7,794,931
Net current assets RBEEFE 2,421,893 824,876
Total assets less current liabilities BMEERRBER 3,073,405 1,185,258

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board on 9 March

201 1.

Dr.Yim Fung

HEE L
Director o

The notes on pages 65 to 170 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Balance Sheet
EEEER

As at 3| December

R+t=A=t—H
Note 2010 2009
Pt & — —RRAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RETEB A RIRE 22(a) 1,268,440 —
Total non-current assets (RBDEELET 1,268,440 —
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables ENHKIE e REMEKHKE 19 386 —
Amount due from a subsidiary P& Lt B /B8 2 R R 22(b) 1,750,135 —
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTHEER 21 101 —
Total current assets RBEEAR 1,750,622 —
Total assets BEE 3,019,062 —
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES BERAE
Share capital LN 26(a) 164,000 —
Share premium W B 26(a) 2,768,723 —
Proposed final dividend REAARE 9 82,000 —
Retained earnings =l 3,119 —
Total equity REmEs 3,017,842 —

B=ETEBREZERERAA
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Balance Sheet
EEEER

As at 3| December

R+ZBA=1+—-H

Note 2010 2009
B —E-2F —EEhE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accrued liabilities H A 5 5008 I e AT RROR 24 1,220 —
Total liabilities BE4E 1,220 —
Total equity and liabilities ExkBELAHE 3,019,062 —
Net current assets REBEEFRE 1,749,402 —
Total assets less current liabilities BEERARBER 3,017,842 —

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board on 9 March 201 1.

Dr.Yim Fung

Director

3

The notes on pages 65 to 170 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREER

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARFARERE AR R
Available-
for-sale
Proposed investments  Currency Non-
Share Share Other final  Retained revaluation translation controlling Total
capital premium reserve  dividend  earnings reserve reserve Total interests equity
EL
ga HERE i b3

Bx  RHER HbEk  RERE  RERN  EHER  RAGR g fRE  RReS
HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
tEr  TEx Bz fEr Tz TEx TEr  TExr  TEr  TEx

Balance at | Janary 2009 RZZTAE

—A-AfER - - 31980 — 1000482 (%) 35 1032701 2402 1,035,103
Profit for the year EREH - - — — 98307 — — 98307 2087 300394
Other comprehensive FRERZENE
income/(loss) for the year /(B - — — — — 9% (335) (239) — (239)
Dividend paid to intermediate  RANEHAE
holding company(Note )~ XHR& (s 9) - — - —  (150,000) - —  (150000) —  (150000)
Balance at 31 December 2009 R=FEn%T
“A=t-A
s — — 31,980 — 1148789 — — 1180769 4489 1185258
Allotment of shares pursuant ~ REEARERH
to the Reorganization ( 2t 26alii)

(Note 26a(i))
Capitalization for issuance of ~ EE{THHAM
new shares (Note 26(a)(ii)) A%l
(P3E 26safii) 123,000 (123,000) - = = = — - - -
Share issuance pursuant to the  BE2IEEH

1,268440  (1,268,440) = — — = = — —

Global Offering UES
(Note 26(a)(iv)) (15 26aliv) 41,000 1,722,000 — — — — — 1,763,000 — 1,763,000
Share issuance costs incurred  AEEE£HR{
in current year TER
(Note 26(2)(v)) ( M3k 26alv) — (95,733) - - — — — (95,733) — (95,733)
Interim dividend (Note 9) k= (i 9) — — — — (32,800) — — (32,800) — (32,800)
Final dividend (Note 9) RERE (K 9) — — - 82,000 (82,000) — — — - -
Profit for the year Rt — — - — 250685 — — 250,685 1,939 252624
Balance at 31 December 2010 R=%-%%
tZAZ1-H
e 164000 2770707 (1,236,460) 82,000 1,084,674 — — 306592 6428 3,072,349

The notes on pages 65 to 170 are an integral part of these consolidated financial FOSENT0EMM T RZEGREMBRENA
statements. B ERD o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

MERETRER
Year ended 3| December
BEt-RA=t-HLFE
Note 2010 2009
P &£ —B-FF —BBAE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Net cash outflow from operating activities RETHRLERERNEFHE 29 (845,260) (148,068)
Cash flows from investing activities REGDHHRENE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWE  RELEF [ (114,972) (347,082)
Purchases of investment properties BEREME 12 (115,055) —
Proceeds from sales of assets and liabilities HEREFENEER
classified as held for sale BEMERE = 7,763
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries & B R RIS TR 30 — I1,144
Dividend paid to intermediate holding company A /1 2 i& 22 &) 37 1+ % 8 9 — (150,000)
Dividend paid to shareholders BEESINEE) 9 (32,800) —
Purchase of held to maturity investments BERZEIHEE 16 (77,833) —
Net cash outflow from investing activities REGHREREREFHE (340,660) (478,175)
Cash flows from financing activities P‘Eﬁ/ﬁ@ﬁﬁimui
(Repayment)/drawdown of bank borrowings ) S IRERITIE X 25 (500,000) 500,000
Proceeds from issue of shares, net of expenses xﬂﬂxfﬂ FTSRUR - MRAX 1,667,267 —
Net cash inflow from financing activities MEFBRARSREFHE 1,167,267 500,000
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RekReEFEBMRL T8 (18,653) (126,243)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~ IR & KR EEFEY 460,284 586,527
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRRERREZEYD 21 441,631 460,284
The notes on pages 65 to 170 are an integral part of these consolidated financial FSZ170EM T RZEFEMBRENA
statements. X ERD o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated on 8 March 2010 in Hong Kong with limited liability under the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap32). The registered office of the
Company is 27th Floor, Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza, 181 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong. The Company's immediate holding company and ultimate
holding company are Guotai Junan Holdings Limited and Guotai Junan

Securities Company Limited respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) are principally engaged in securities and commodities dealing and
broking, margin and other financing, corporate finance and asset management
(collectively the “Continuing Operations”). The investment holding in equity
funds and provision of consultancy services in Shenzhen (collectively the
“Discontinued Operations’) was transferred to Guotai Junan Financial Holdings
Limited ("GJFHL") on 30 October 2009. The Company's shares were listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange™) on 8 July 2010.

These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board for issue

on 9 March 201 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been

consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™). They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which are carried at fair

value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis
that the current group structure had been in existence at the beginning
of the earliest period. Accordingly, the consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement of
the Group for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2010 include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries with effect from
| January 2009 oy if later, since their respective dates of incorporation as
if the current group structure had been in existence throughout the two
years presented. The consolidated balance sheet of the Group as at 31
December 2009 and 31 December 2010 have been prepared as if the
current group structure had been in existence as at the respective dates.
All material intra-group transactions and balances have been eliminated

on consolidation.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note

33.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

Standards, amendments and interpretations published and effective for

accounting periods beginning on or after

I January 2010

e BwERME

TESHBREE (B)
21 RREE(H)

(00 R-ZE-—ZEF-—F—Az8z#
Fin 8y & 5t B E AR fi R A 3L A9
R BETRZE

Applicable for
financial years

beginning on/ after Relevant

Standard/ BRARTSAH to the Group
Interpretation Content HZEHRN HAKE
BHRE RE MBEFE REHE
HKAS 17 (Amendment) Leases | January 2010 Yes
BEGHENE TR (BT X) HE —F-TF-A—H =
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and [ July 2009 No
BRERENE 275 (BEFT) separate financial statements “ZTNFLA-H 4
AU REBRBRER
HKAS 39 (Amendment) Financial instruments: Recognition and [ July 2009 No
BEGTENSE measurement - Eligible hedged items ~ —ZETNF+A—H B
39%: (B3] %K) TRTA-BREGE
—RERYHIER
HKFRS | (Revised) First-time adoption of HKFRS [ July 2009 No
BAMBRERNE IR (BEF) BRERBEMBREER “EEAFEA—H &
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business combinations [ July 2009 No
BEMBREENEIR (KB LRAH “EENFLA—H &
HK (IFRIC) - Int 17 Distribution of non-cash
B (ERABRERE assets to owners [ July 2009 No
ZEE)-2EBE1H AREADEFREEE “EENFLA—H &
HK (IFRIC) - Int 18 Transfer of assets from customers [ July 2009 No
B (ERNERERE BREPAE “EEAFEA—H &
ZEg)-2EZ18%
HKFRS | (Amendment) Additional exemptions I January 2010 No
BERRBREER for first-time adopters —T-TF-A—H &
F15% (BT A) BRERENBINGS
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Group cash-settled share-based | January 2010 No
BERRBRELENE 2R payment transaction —T-TF-A—H A
CHES, SENRSEENRD

RERNNRR 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretations published and effective for

accounting periods beginning on or after | January 2010 (Continued)

HKAS 17 (Amendment), ‘Leases’, deletes specific guidance regarding
classification of leases of land, so as to eliminate inconsistency with
the general guidance on lease classification. As a result, leases of
land should be classified as either finance or operating lease using
the general principles of HKAS |7, i.e. whether the lease transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset to the lessee. Prior to the amendment, land interest which
title is not expected to pass to the Group by the end of the lease
term was classified as operating lease under “Interests in leasehold

land”, and amortized over the lease term.

HKAS 17 (Amendment) has been applied retrospectively for annual
periods beginning | January 2010 in accordance with the effective
date and transitional provisions of the amendment. The Group has
reassessed the classification of unexpired leasehold land as at |
January 2010 on the basis of information existing at the inception
of those leases, and recognized the leasehold land in Hong Kong as
finance lease retrospectively. As a result of the reassessment, the
Group has reclassified leasehold land from operating lease to

finance lease.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2010 Annual Report

2

TREFBRMUE (B)

2.1

RREE (&
() R-ZF—FF—-H—HAsz#

Fita 89 & &t B2 M R 3K A
A EATREE ()

BBGIEUNSE17H (BFTA)
(HEIMETEBEEL S
B AIES AR T &
HESE-—REINT—H
1o At - ME L HVERE
BESHENETRN—RE
A pERBMESLEHE
RERBERHREHEER
BRAADMERMEHER
ZHRMA o RMEFI A HE
HeERBERTEEBYELRE
EHtuERE S EAIRHE
ErmER] ETHEEHR
E WERESHNEH -

BRI ERFE175 (BRTK)
By SACHENER SRS
BEHE - B2 T4 A
—HRENFEHRENE
- AEEER-_2-FF—
A—BREZSHE LR
BEMEHNFEREMEEL
e TEEPHEIANE
ENHEL W AMBEE - %
B ABEASELEHREL
MR EREENDBERTE
HE -



2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)  Standards, amendments and interpretations published and effective for

accounting periods beginning on or after | January 2010 (Continued)

The land interest of the Group that is held for own use is
accounted for as property, plant and equipment and is depreciated
from the land interest available for its intended use over the

shorter of the useful live of the asset and the lease term.

The effect of the adoption of this amendment is as below:-

e BwERME

TEEHHRBE (B)

WREE (B)

(00 R-ZE-—ZEF-—F—Az8z#
FIA B 2 5T BIE R R £ BUHY
BB - EETR 2B (B)

AR EREA RN LHERA
ESIEME - B RS - 4
RrEARG L RRREES
BHREERRERREE
FEHE -

RRZETANTENT

As at As at

31 December 3| December
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000

R-B-BF  R-TINA
t=A=t-8 +=A=t-F

TER TET
Decrease in interests in
leasehold land HAOREE LR (283,985) (291,765)
Increase in property, plant
and equipment BNmE - BEREE 283,985 291,765
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretations published and effective for

accounting periods beginning on or after | January 2010 (Continued)

The above amendment had no impact on the consolidated balance
sheet as at | January 2009 and profit and other comprehensive

income for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2010.

‘Second improvements to HKFRS’ (2009) was issued in April 2009,
by the HKICPA. It comprises amendments that result in accounting
changes for presentation, recognition or measurement purposes as
well as terminology or editorial amendments related to a variety of
individual HKFRS standards. For amendments that are effective for
the financial year beginning on | January 2010, they have had no

impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)  Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective

for accounting periods beginning on or after | January 2010

2

r
o)

TESHBREE (B)
21 RREE(H)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B S SRR M EE

b) R-E-—ZFF-—F—-Hzfz#
G158 & 5 B fET 2 AR i 1 1w oK
EREER - BRI R KRB

Applicable for
financial years

beginning on/ after

Relevant

Standard/ BRARTSAH to the Group
Interpretation Content HZEHRN HAKE
BHRE RE MBEFE REHE
Amendment to HKAS 32 Classification of rights issues | February 2010 No
BB EAE 32 KMER] HEE DR —“F-FF-A-H &
HK (IFRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities [ July 2010 No
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Amendments to HKFRS | Limited exemption from comparative [ July 2010 No
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for first-time adopters
BRRBERERBREER
FIRBELENERHES
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related party disclosures | January 201 | Yes
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HK(IFRIC) Int 14 Prepayments of a minimum I January 2011 No
% (BARMBHREREZEE) funding requirement —T——%-A-H A
REEURHET REEERTEORMR
Amendment to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfer of financial assets [ July 2011 No
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Amendment to HKAS 12 Deferred tax: Recovery | January 2012 No
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)  Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective

for accounting periods beginning on or after | January 2010

(Continued)

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

The revised standard clarifies and simplifies the definition of a
related party and removes the requirement for government-
related entities to disclose details of all transactions with the
government and other government-related entities. When the
revised standard applied, the Group and its parent will need
to disclose any transactions between its subsidiaries and its

associates.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and replaces those
parts of HKAS 39 relating to the classification and

measurement of financial assets. Key features are as follows:

Financial assets are required to be classified into two
measurement categories: those to be measured subsequently
at fair value, and those to be measured subsequently at
amortized cost. The decision is to be made at initial
recognition. The classification depends on the entity's business
model for managing its financial instruments and the

contractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE TSR R MEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 ETEEHBEERBE (&)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 REEE(E)

(b)  Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective b) R-E-—ZFF-—F—-Hzfz#
for accounting periods beginning on or after | January 2010 G158 & 5 B fET 2 AR i 1 1w oK
(Continued) ERE)ER - EATAREE

(%)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments(Continued)

An instrument is subsequently measured at amortized cost
only if it is a debt instrument and both the objective of the
entity’s business model is to hold the asset to collect the
contractual cash flows, and the asset's contractual cash flows
represent only payments of principal and interest (that is, it
has only ‘basic loan features'). All other debt instruments are

to be measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All equity instruments are to be measured subsequently at fair
value. Equity instruments that are held for trading will be
measured at fair value through profit and loss. For all other
equity instruments, an irrevocable election can be made at
initial recognition, to recognize unrealized and realized fair
value gains and losses through other comprehensive income
rather than profit and loss. There is to be no recycling of fair
value gains and losses to profit and loss. This election may be
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Dividends are to
be presented in profit and loss, as long as they represent a

return on investment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)  Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective

for accounting periods beginning on or after | January 2010

(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments(Continued)

While adoption of HKFRS 9 is mandatory from | January
2013, earlier adoption is permitted.

The Group is considering the implications of the standard, the
impact on the Group and the timing of its adoption by the
Group.

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010

Improvements to HKFRSs were issued in May 2010, by the
HKICPA. All improvements are effective for annual period
beginning on or after | January 201, with earlier application
permitted. No material changes to accounting policies are

expected as a result of these amendments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(9

Early adoption of standards

The revised HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures was issued in
November 2009.The revised standard provides an exemption from
the disclosure requirements for government-related entities and
clarifies and simplifies the definition of a related party. The Group
early applies HKAS 24 (Revised) retrospectively from | January
2009 onward. The early adoption of the revised standard does not
have an impact on the financial position or the comprehensive
income of the Group, but only affects the disclosure of related

party information.

Except for the early adoption of HKAS 24 (Revised), the Group has
not early adopted other new or amended accounting standards or

interpretations in 2010.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation

(a)  Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the

Group.They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group.The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date,
irrespective of the extent of any non-controlling interest. The
excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group's
share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets

of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized directly in

the consolidated income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealized
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of

subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure

consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

23

2.4

Consolidation (Continued)

(a)  Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less provision for impairment losses (Note 2.7). The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the

basis of dividends received and receivable.

(b)  Transactions with non-controlling interests

All transactions with non-controlling interests are recorded in
equity if there is no change in control and these transactions will no
longer result in goodwill or gains and losses. When the control is
lost, any remaining interest in the entity is re-measured to fair value,
and a gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated income

statement.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The
chief operating decision maker is the person or group that allocates
resources to and assesses the performance of the operating segments of
an entity. The Group has determined the Board as its chief operating

decision maker.

Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are included

in determining business segment performance.

Client trust bank balances

The Group has classified the clients' monies as cash held on behalf of
customers under the current assets section of the balance sheet and
recognized a corresponding accounts payable to respective clients on

grounds that it is liable for any loss or misappropriation of clients’ monies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise of offices. Leasehold land classified as finance
leases and all other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment if any. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the

items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or are
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income

statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences amortization from
the time when the land interest becomes available for its intended use.
Amortization on leasehold land classified as finance lease and
depreciation on other property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their cost or revalued amounts to

their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Shorter of remaining
Leasehold land classified lease term or useful

as finance lease life of the building

Buildings 25-40 years
Leasehold improvements 3 years
Office equipment 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 3 years
Motor vehicles 3 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each balance sheet date. Assets that are subject to
depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7). The recoverable amount is the

higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. These are included in “other income” in the

consolidated income statements.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and

impairment if any.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization
period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite

useful life is reviewed at least at each balance sheet date.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful life are annually tested for
impairment and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be

impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets, representing club membership and eligibility rights to
trade on or through the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and The
Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited, with indefinite useful lives are
tested for impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortized. The useful
life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from

indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at

each reporting date.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2010 Annual Report

2

TEEHHRBE (B)

2.6

2.7

BYEE (&

EREEARANELEERRS
MeBERRNAERNBENA
x%%ﬁﬁ’ﬂ&%%%%i%%

ERARREBEETEENRE
TRHER] - ﬁﬂﬁ&ﬁﬁéiiﬁ

AR ERFETRENM - ZAFEN
BEEAHNE BRETERRHN
BVEENAERFHESFM
i DETERTERRAMMER
RINAES - TER - BERE
REERARAEEEBEANRAF
BIELFTEONE - DEAKER
EEAE -

FERMEERE

BRTAERFHENEEARE
He TeSFETRENS - UR
FREBHENEE  EHRFHAR
BB LA B R EER
e ERAFHEREETR

REBRREEREEBANKE
FHAEERTERHERARE
REEMENERRE) NZRER -
BAHERENS  EERABLH
HIRERENREKF REELE
i) 738 - WRMENFEREE
(BERIN) AN #E BB
{EREETRE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Financial assets

2.8.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and

receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale

investments. Management determines the classification of its

financial assets at initial recognition.

(@)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for
trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or
loss upon initial recognition. A financial asset is classified as
held for trading if it is acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term. Financial assets held for trading
consist of equity instruments and are recognized as “Financial

assets held for trading”.

The Group designates certain financial assets upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss (fair value
option). This designation cannot subsequently be changed.
According to HKAS 39, the fair value option is only applied

when the following conditions are met:-

(i) the application on the fair value option reduces or
eliminates an accounting mismatch that would otherwise

arise; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

2.8.1 Classification (Continued)

(@)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

(i) the financial assets are part of a portfolio of financial
instruments which is risk managed and reported to

senior management on a fair value basis; or

(i) the financial assets consist of a host contract containing

an embedded derivatives that must be separated.

The fair value option is applied to the Group's investment in
unlisted funds that are part of a portfolio managed on a fair

value basis.

Financial assets for which the fair value option is applied are

recognized as "Financial assets designated at fair value”.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They are included in current assets, except for
maturities greater than |2 months after the balance sheet

date. These are classified as non-current assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

2.8.1

©

(d)

Classification (Continued)

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Group’s management has the positive

intention and ability to hold to maturity.

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are financial assets that are non-
derivatives and are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of

the investment within |2 months of the balance sheet date.

2.8.2 Recognition and measurement

(@)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Regularway purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and available-for-sale investments are
recognized on trade-date - the date on which the Group

commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

2.8.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

(@)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

Financial assets are initially recognized at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the “financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss” category are included in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which they arise. Financial assets
are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or where the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Financial liabilities are derecognized when they are
extinguished - that is, when the obligation is discharged,

cancelled or expires.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RERMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

2.8.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

()

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are initially recognized at fair
value together with any transaction costs and measured
subsequently at fair value with gains and losses recognized in
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, except
for impairment losses, until the financial assets are
derecognized. If an available-for-sale investments is determined
to be impaired the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income will transfer to the consolidated income statement.
Dividend on available-for-sale investments are recognized in
the consolidated income statement in “Dividend income”

when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

The fair values of quoted investments in active markets are
based on current bid prices. If there is no active market for a
financial asset, the Group establishes fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s
length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis and other

valuation techniques commonly used by market participants.

2

TESHBERME (&)
28 &RMEE (B

2.8 2R KitE ()

(b)

A HERE

AL ERERDEA
FEEREMRFRA
RURBEEEAFE
HE BEESARE
WHEER EESH
AEWKILRABIL R
BERBIN) - T
EREETAAE A
EHEGAZERSE
P RN EET
BEEHARES T
BB 1A B B R A
£ 0 A BN BB E
A IR A BBk
Nl

EEBRTSANBRER
ERAVYERRITEAE
AE-WEEREED
SRR BIARE
REGERARTERAF
B-fEHNEBERER
THETZRITHR
5 BERENRALM
ARm52EEERR
FMEMEEDE -

BXEZBEBREZERERLAF

2010 F

85



86

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

2.8.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

(©

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are initially recognized at the fair
value including direct and incremental transaction costs and
measured subsequently at amortized cost, using the effective
interest rate. They are derecognized when the rights to

receive cash flows have expired.

Interest on held-to-maturity investments is included in the
consolidated income statement and reported as net interest
income. In the case of an impairment, it is reported as a
deduction from the carrying value of the investment and
recognized in the consolidated income statement as

impairment charges on held-to-maturity investments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RERMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

2.8.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

(@

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost using the
effective interest method less impairment, if any. The Group'’s
accounts receivable (including amount due from group
companies and prepayments, deposits and other receivables),
loans and advances to customers and “cash and cash
equivalents” fall under this category. Accounts receivables,
loans and advances to customers and amounts due from
group companies are recognized initially at fair value which is
the cash given to originate or purchase the loan including any
transaction costs and measured subsequently at amortized
cost using the effective interest rate method. Interest on loans
is included in the consolidated income statement and is
reported as net interest income. In the case of an impairment,
it is reported as a deduction from the carrying value of the
loan and recognized in the consolidated income statement as

impairment charge for credit losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortized cost

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired. A financial asset
is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss
event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset that can be reliably
estimated. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization,
default or delinquency in payment, and clients’ collateral are
insufficient to cover outstanding loan balances are considered

indications that the receivable is impaired.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized in
the consolidated income statement. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a
practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the

basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of a collateralized financial asset reflects the cash flows that
may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the

collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Assets carried at amortized cost (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognized (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance
account. The amount of the reversal is recognized in the

consolidated income statement.

When a loan is irrecoverable, it is written off against the related
allowances for loan impairment. Such loans are written off after all
the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of
the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are recognized as other income in the

consolidated income statement.

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired. In the case of
equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered in determining whether the assets are impaired. If any
such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortization)
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognized in consolidated income statement - is
removed from consolidated statements of comprehensive income
and recognized in the consolidated income statement. Impairment
losses recognized in the consolidated income statement on equity
instruments are not reversed through the consolidated income

statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise deposits held at call with banks and

bank deposits with original maturities of three months or less.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortized cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognized in the consolidated income statement

over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the liabilities are due
to be settled or the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement

for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including other payables are recognized initially at fair
value net of transaction costs incurred. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently stated at amortized cost; any difference between proceeds
net of transaction costs and the redemption value is recognized in the
consolidated income statement over the period of the other financial

liabilities using the effective interest method.

Other assets

Other assets represent the deposits and admission fee paid to the Stock
Exchange, Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited, Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited and other regulators. They are intended to

hold on a long-term basis and stated at cost less impairment, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.14

2.15

Leases - operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated income statement on a

straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Where the Group is a lessor under operating leases, assets leased out
are included in investment properties and property, plant and equipment
in the balance sheet. They are depreciated over their expected useful
lives on a basis consistent with similar owned property, plant and
equipment. Rental income (net of any incentives given to lessees) is

recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Provision

A provision is recognized when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the

obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the

probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap.485) for all of
its employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the consolidated
income statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the Scheme. The assets of the Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.

The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees

when contributed into the Scheme.

Annual leave

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized when they
are accrued to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by

employees up to the balance sheet date.

Bonus

The Group recognizes a liability and an expense for bonuses, based
on an approved formula that takes into consideration the profit
attributable to the Group after certain adjustments. The Group
recognizes a provision where contractually obliged or where there

is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the "functional

currency”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), which is the Company's

functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognized in the consolidated income

statement.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in
foreign currency classified as available-for-sale are analyzed between
translation differences resulting from changes in the amortized cost
of the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the
security. Translation differences related to changes in the amortized
cost are recognized in profit or loss, and other changes in the
carrying amount, except impairment, are recognized in consolidated

statements of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)  Transactions and balances (Continued)

)

Translation differences on non-monetary financial instruments, such
as equities held at fair value through profit or loss, are recognized in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial instruments, such as equities
classified as available-for-sale financial assets are included in the fair

value reserve in consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:-

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are

translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each consolidated income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the

transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognized in

consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Exchange differences arising from the above process are reported

in shareholders’ equity as “currency translation reserve”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RERMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 T EEFBEERME (&)
2.18 Share capital 2.18 BRA&

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as

a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividend on ordinary shares is recognized as a liability in the
consolidated financial statements in the period in which it is approved by

the shareholders.

Dividend for the vyear that is declared after the balance sheet date is

dealt with in the dividend note.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Group's subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluate position taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of

amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognized in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax

asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary difference can be utilized.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e mERMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on

the following bases:-

(i)  commission income on securities and futures dealing and broking,
on the transaction dates when the relevant contract notes are

exchanged;

(i) income from leveraged foreign exchange transactions on an accrual

basis;

(i) commission income on underwriting/placing in securities are earned
on execution of each significant act based on the terms of

underlying agreements and mandates;

(iv) management, consultancy, investment advisory fees and handling

income, when the services have been rendered,

(v) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument

to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;

(vi) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive payment

has been established;

(vii) performance fees are recognized on the performance fee valuation
day of the investment funds and managed accounts when there is a
positive performance for the relevant performance period, taking
into consideration the relevant basis of calculation for the

investment funds and managed accounts;

(viii) information services income, when the services have been

rendered; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ix) net gain/loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include realized gain/ loss which are recognized on transaction date
when the relevant contract notes are exchanged; and unrealized fair
value gain/loss which are recognized in the period in which they

arise.

2.21 Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land and office
buildings, is held for long-term rental yields and is not occupied by the
Group. Investment property is measured at cost, including related
transaction costs, less accumulated depreciation allowance (Note 2.5)

and impairment, if any.

2.22 Securities borrowing and lending agreements

The Group has engaged in the securities borrowing and lending business,
under which all transactions are secured in the form of cash. Cash
collateral advanced or received is recorded as an asset or a liability. Fees
received or paid in connection with securities borrowing and lending is

recorded as handling income or handling charge respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e mERMEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The
Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the analysis,
evaluation, acceptance and monitoring of such risks which are an inevitable
consequence of being in business. The Group's aim is therefore to achieve an
appropriate balance between risk and return and minimize potential adverse

effect on the Group’s financial performance.

The Group's risk management policies are approved by the Board and are
designed to identify and analyze these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and
controls and to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable
and up-to-date information. The Board provides written principles for overall
risk management. The Group regularly reviews its risk management policies to

reflect any change in markets and clients.

The Group's principal financial assets and liabilities comprise of cash and short
term deposits maintained as working capital as well as held-to-maturity
investments and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such as loans and advances to
customers and accounts receivable as well as accounts payable and bank

borrowings, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are credit risk,
liquidity risk, market risk, and capital management risks. The policies for

managing each of these risks are summarized below:

3.1 Credit risk

Credit exposures arise principally from loans and advances to customers,
accounts receivable from brokers, clients and clearing houses, held-to-
maturity investments, bank balances and client trust bank balances which

are included in the Group’s asset portfolio.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Credit risk (Continued)

301

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies

The members of the Credit Committee include the Chief Executive
Officer; Responsible Officers and Financial Controller. The Credit
Committee has appointed a group of authorized persons who are
charged with the responsibility of approving credit limit and margin
limit of each client. The Credit and Risk Management Department is
responsible for making settlement calls when the trades of margin

clients exceed their respective limits.

The Credit Committee is also responsible for approval of stock
acceptable for margin lending at a specified ratio. The approved
stock list is updated in accordance with the stock grading list of the
Group’s main bankers, and will be revised as and when deemed

necessary by the Credit Committee.

The Credit Committee will prescribe from time to time lending
limits on individual stock or on any individual customer based on
regular analysis of borrower's repayment ability. The Group also
employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate excessive

credit risk.

(i) In respect of taking collateral from margin clients, the Group's
guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral
from its clients are basically tighter than those required by its
bankers. In particular, a certain haircut will be used for the
calculation of acceptable collateral values of margin clients so
that the Group has sufficient time to call back loan from its
margin clients before margin call from the bankers. No margin
facilities would be granted to the Group's clients for their

derivatives positions.
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mEMBRERME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

3.1

3.0

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

(i) Maximum margin limit will be set on individual margin client in
order to avoid building up excessive margin exposure from
individual margin client and comply with the Securities and

Future (Financial Resources) Rules (cap 571 N); and

(i) Margin call will be executed by the Credit and Risk
Management Department if the total outstanding amount of a
margin client exceed either of the credit line or the
acceptable value of margin stocks, whichever is lower. Force
sell actions will be taken if the clients fail to settle the

outstanding amount.

The Group has loans and advances to customers on the balance
sheet that contain an element of risk in the event that the
counterparties may be unable to meet the terms of such
agreements. The Group minimizes such risk exposure by performing
detailed credit analysis of potential loan investment, and dedicated
investment professionals are assigned to oversee and monitor the
performance of the loan investment. These key investment decisions

are also subject to approval by the Board.

Loans and advances to customers including IPO loans for
subscription of new shares are normally settled within one week
from the drawdown date. Forced liquidation action would be taken
if the customers fail to settle their shortfall within specific period of

tolerance after IPO allotment result announced.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RERMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 ¢HREKRER(Z)
3.1 Credit risk (Continued) 31 FERRE (8)

31 EHERIREZE R RERBHR

3.1.1 Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

Accounts receivable from clients represents receivables from clients
arising from dealing in securities, which normally had a delivery-
against payment settlement term of 2 to 3 days. The Group allows a
credit up to the settlement dates of the respective securities
transactions (normally within T+2 or T+3 days). All application for
credit limits must be reviewed by Credit Manager and approved by
any member of the Credit Committee. However, no credit limit
would be granted to new clients. The deficiency report for cash/
custodian clients would be monitored daily by the Director and
Credit Manager of Credit and Risk Management Department.
Failure to meet normal settlement terms may result in the
liquidation of the client’s positions. Credit and Risk Management
Department determines whether force-sell action is to be taken
against clients with overdue balances on case-by-case basis. The
Credit Committee regularly reviews the overdue balances for cash/

custodian and margin clients.

The Group only accepts margin deposit in the form of cash for
futures and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking. No
transaction is allowed to be executed if the current position of the
customer exceeds its trading limit. The margin deposit placed and
the aggregate of the required margin deposit of each futures and
leveraged foreign exchange contract is timely monitored by both
the dealers and the Credit Risk Management Department. Margin
call will be executed by the on-site duty staff for futures and
leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking if there is a deficit
with the margin deposit. Forced liquidation of the client's position

will be executed if the customer fails to meet margin calls.
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mEMBRERME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.1 Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

With the above stated controls, the Management is confident that
the credit risk to the Group resulting from securities, futures and
leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking as well as margin

and other loan financing are manageable.

Accounts receivable from brokers, dealers and clearing houses are
placed with large international financial institutions which are
governed by regulators including the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (the "HKMA") and the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Commission (the “SFC"). Accounts receivable arising from asset
management, corporate finance and advisory services are trade
counterparties with sound credit rating and/or reputation. The
credit risk of accounts receivable from brokers, dealers and clearing

houses is considered to be manageable.

The aging analysis of loans and advances to customers and accounts

receivable are included in note 17 and note 18 respectively.

Other assets which are mainly deposits placed with the regulators

are considered to have minimal credit risk.

For the Group's bank balances which they beneficially own and hold
in their names, they are deposited in reputable, large commercial
banks. For the client trust bank balances which they hold in
segregated accounts, they are deposited in authorized financial
institutions in Hong Kong. The credit risk of bank balances and client

trust bank balances are considered to be manageable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

3.1

301

3.1.2

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

For debt securities, external credit rating such as Moody’s rating or
their equivalents are used by the Credit and Risk Management
Department for managing of the credit risk exposures as
supplemented by the Group's own assessment through the use of

internal ratings tools.

Impairment and provisioning policies

The Group's credit and risk management policy requires review of
individual outstanding amount at least monthly or more regularly
depending on individual circumstances or market condition.
Impairment allowances on individually assessed accounts are
determined by an evaluation of the incurred loss at balance sheet
date on a case-by-case basis, and are applied to all individually
significant accounts. The assessment normally encompasses
collateral held and the anticipated receipts for that individual
account. Generally, impairment allowances will be provided when
clients failed to meet margin call requirements and clients’ collateral

are insufficient to cover their outstanding loan balances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e mERMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.3 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit

enhancements

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event the
counterparties fail to perform their obligations as at the balance
sheet date, in relation to each class of financial assets, is the carrying

amount of those assets as indicated in the balance sheet.

These amounts represent the worst case scenario of credit risk
exposure to the Group at 3| December 2009 and 2010, without
taking account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements

attached.

3.1.4 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

(a) Bank balances and client trust bank balances

The counterparties of all client trust bank balances and
majority of cash and bank balances are located in Hong Kong.
As the Group’s bank balances and client trust bank balances
are deposited with a number of financially sound financial
institutions, in the opinion of the Directors the concentration
risk of Group’s bank balances and client trust bank balances is

insignificant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.4 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure
(Continued)

(®)

Loans and advances to customers and accounts receivable

from clients

The counterparties of majority of loans and advances to
customers (including margin loan, IPO loans and other loan
financing) and accounts receivable from clients are individual,
mainly located in China. The Credit and Risk Management
Department daily prepares key margin client and future client
exposure for review to avoid excessive concentration risk. As
the Group trades with a large number of diversified clients, in
the opinion of Directors the concentration risk of loan and
advances to customers and accounts receivable from client is

manageable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e mERMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 SHREABEE(Z)
3.1 Credit risk (Continued) 3.1 FERR (&
3.1.4 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure SAEGEERR /A ENR
(Continued) feFH2E (8)
(c) Accounts receivable from brokers, dealers as well as clearing (c) BUKLE THHUR
houses and others mEMREMALHR
TR
The Group also has accounts receivable from clearing houses, AEENRERUEE
brokers and dealers from its securities, commodities and i BRERXS5HEH
leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking as well as BF o BmRERINE
other receivables from the asset management and corporate R 5 KAL) FIAA R
finance. Although top 5 brokers and dealers accounted for REEEEERGER
more than 90% of its accounts receivable, Responsible B H A B FRIE - &
Officers timely monitor excess deposit placed with individual BEAAELERRSHEIG
counterparty to ensure the concentration risk of accounts H W RIEI0% A £ -
receivable is manageable. BEEENBEREER

FRENRSHFHiE
BEX UEREKR
ENETRREEESR

A e
For the geographical analysis of financial assets at fair value FARATEFARR
through profit or loss and held-to-maturity investments, please MEMEERFZEINH
refer to Note 20 and Note |6 respectively. RENMEBDN  FH
5l 2 B3 B 7 20 % WY
16 °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.5 Held-to-maturity investments

The table below presents an analysis of held-to-maturity
investments by rating agency designation at 31 December, based on

Moody's ratings:

e BwERME

3 TREREE(Z)
3.1 EERR (B

BILREIHRE

TREJIERE S GFRRE)
HE  NTZRA=+—8f
ERERMRE NN -

2010 2009
—E2-EF “EBNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER TET
Neither past due nor impaired: 5% %38 B TR R B
Ba2 Ba2 77,833 —

No impairment provision has been recognised for the held-to-

maturity investments as at 31 December 2010 (2009: Nil).
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mEMBRERME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that the
fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open
positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are
exposed to general and specific market movements and changes in the
level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest rates, foreign

exchange rates and equity prices.

The financial instruments held by the Group mainly exposed to interest
rate risk and price risk. The main market risks include cash flow interest
rate risk, and price risk. The Group has established policies and
procedures for monitoring and controlling the market risk arising from

these financial instruments.

3.2.1 Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group's loans and advances to
customers, accounts receivable, accounts payable to client, bank

borrowings, client trust bank balances, cash and bank balances.

Interest on cash at banks will fluctuate at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Interest on bank overdrafts will fluctuate at
floating rate based on prime rate. The Group mitigates its interest
rate risk by monitoring market interest rate movement and revising
the interest rates offered to its customers on an ongoing basis in
order to limit potential adverse effects of interest rate movements

on net interest income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Market risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Interest rate risk (Continued)

Bank borrowings and margin loans receivable at variable rates
exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Other financial

assets and liabilities are non interest bearing.

The Group regularly calculates the impact on profit or loss of a
possible interest rate shift on its portfolio of bank borrowings,

margin loans receivable and interest bearing bank deposits.

Based on the simulations performed and with other variables held
constant, the profit before taxation for the year ended 3l
December 2010 would increase by approximately HK$83 million
(2009: HK$64 million) should the interest rate increase by |%.

3.2.2 Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk from equity
instruments held by the Group which are classified on the balance
sheet as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Price risk
is the risk of changes in fair value of financial instruments from
fluctuations, whether such change in price is caused by factors
specific to the individual instrument or factors affecting all
instruments traded in the markets. The Group mitigates its price
risk by monitoring the performance of investment in financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss that are mainly listed equity

securities in Hong Kong,
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mEMBRERME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Market risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Price risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2010, the profit before taxation would increase/
decrease by HK$8.9 million (2009: HK$8.5 million) should the Hang
Seng Index (“HSI") increase/decrease by 10%. The analysis is based
on the assumption that all the equity instruments move according
to the historical correlation with the HSI and with all other

variables held constant.

The asset quality of the margin client’s margin collateral will also
deteriorate when the market comes down drastically. Scenario
analysis and stress testing are regularly performed on an individual

client basis.

3.2.3 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement in foreign
currency exchange rate will affect the Group’s financial results and
its cash flows. The management considers the Group is not exposed
to significant foreign currency risk as the majority of its operations
and transactions are in Hong Kong and denominated in Hong Kong

dollars and US dollars.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RERMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 ¢HREKRER(Z)

3.3 Liquidity risk 33 RBpELAR

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash, the
availability of funding from an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying business, Finance Department maintains
flexibility in funding by maintaining available committed credit facilities

from the banks.

Sources of liquidity are daily reviewed by the Finance Department to

ensure the availability of sufficient liquid funds to meet all obligations.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity reserve
(comprises undrawn borrowing facility) and cash and cash equivalents on
the basis of expected cash flow in strict compliance with statutory
requirements. This is achieved by monitoring the liquidity position of the
individual company within the Group on a daily basis to ensure the
availability of sufficient liquid funds to meet all obligations and compliance
with the statutory requirements such as the Hong Kong Securities and

Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (Cap.57IN).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e mERMEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 SREKRER (£
3.3 Liquidity risk (Continued) 33 nBpELEAR (&)
Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities BEKIBAE S AT HEE S
=)
The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under TERERGEEEERGBRAPES
non-derivative financial liabilities and assets held for managing liquidity KEHBORARERE - 257 8%
risk by remaining contractual maturities at the date of the consolidated EREEE R ERNEITEER
balance sheet. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual BEREENRGNENE - %%k
undiscounted cash flows. FIRBENEERENATRASR
% o
As at 31 December 2010 R-Z-F5+-A=1+-H
Up to [-3 3-12 -5 Over
| month months months years 5years  Indefinite! Total
-%= zE BRERE
—-fHAR B +=@AR -Z21f RIF ARY @t
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TEn TER TEx TER FER FER  TER
Assets EE
Cash and bank balances ReRFITEH 396,762 45,094 — — — —  4418%
Client trust bank balances EPERRTHES 5650058 223682 3,007 — — — 5876747
Loans and advances to customers Rt T EPHEH
RER 1,975,894 — — — — — 197589
Accounts receivable MR 904138 30343 1,102 — — — 935583
Financial assets at fair value BRATEFARS
through profit or loss NeREE - — — — — 84099 840%9
Held-to-maturity investments BEIHRE — 2,886 2919 89,054 — — 94,859
Total assets EELE 8926852 302,005 7,028 89,054 = 84099 9,409,038
Liabilties af
Accounts payable Ef5E (6,778,940) — - — — —  (6778940)
Other payables and accrued HtbERFER
liabilities Eitaf (26659)  (76807)  (2695) — — —  (106,161)
Total liabilities BEAE (6805599)  (76807) (2695 — — —  (6885,101)
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Notes to the

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (Continued)

As at 3|1 December 2009

Consolidated Financial Statements
e RERMEE

3

R-ZZEAE+ZA=+—-H

tREARER (&)
3.3 RggEeREk (£

REVIBAZ SR T REEE T

=
£

Up to [-3 3-12 -5 Over
[ month months months years 5years  Indefinite’ Total
-2= ZE BRER
-fEAR A +=@A -2EE @AIE ARE @zt
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEx TExr TEx Tz Tz  TEx  TEx
Assets BE
Cash and bank balances Re RfThR 390291 70073 — — — — 460,364
Client trust bank balances REEFARTEL 5379312 300393 — — — — 5679705
Loans and advances to customers IRt FEPHIER
kB 758276 103,068 — — — — 861344
Accounts receivable e T8 328,177 — 6,085 — — — 33420
Financial assets at fair value BATE AR
through profit or loss HEREE - — - - — 92567 92,567
Total assets EELE 685605 473534 6,085 — — 92,567 7428242
Liabilities =1
Amount due to the ultimate JER SRR
holding company NSE (578) — — — — — (578)
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries  FE1S [F 2 B
NSE (645) — — — — — (645)
Accounts payable EN3IE (5955,215) — — — — —  (5955215)
Bank borrowings RITER (300680) (200,575 — — — —  (501,255)
Other payables and EfENFUER (G1.549)  (82797)  (4,005) — — — (138351
accrued liabilities fEstat
Total liabilities BEAR (6308667)  (283372)  (4005) — — —  (6596,044)

Indefinite represents equity investments with no contractual maturities date.

1

BRTERRARLEANIHANKRER

g o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

3.4.1 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

At the balance sheet date, the fair value of the Group's financial
assets and liabilities not measured at fair value are not materially

different from their carrying amounts.

3.4.2 Financial instruments measured at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of financial
instruments measured at fair value at the balance sheet date across
the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value of each
financial instruments categorised in its entirety based on the lowest
level of input that is significant to that fair value measurement. The

levels are defined as follows:

Level | (highest level): fair values measured using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial instruments

including listed equity securities on exchange.

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted price in active markets
for similar financial instruments, or using valuation techniques in
which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly based on
observable market data. This level includes investments in funds
with listed equities which are valued at net asset value provided by

fund administrators.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RERMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 ¢HREKRER(Z)
3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued) 3.4 SRBEERAENATE (&

3.4.2 Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued) 42BN TFEGENEHIA (B)
Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using valuation FIR(ZFEFR) : 2 FERE
techniques in which any significant input is not based on observable FALERMEE  EREEN
market data. This level includes investments in funds with unlisted LB TRRRAIBREINT
equities which are valued at net asset value provided by fund BEE - WRBIBERAR LT
administrators. BRAESHRE  MATRE

SEEARRNEEFERM
{E o
As at 3| December 2010 R-Z2-25+t-A=1+-H
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
1R FE2 E3R Bt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TERT FTERT FERT TER
Financial assets at fair value R AFEFAE
through profit or loss B MEE 84,099 — — 84,099
As at 31 December 2009 R-BEAF+ZA=+—H
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
1R FE2 #E3; Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FERT TER TER
Financial assets at fair value  RAF(EF AR
through profit or loss mHEMEE 92,567 — — 92,567
There were no significant transfers between instruments in Level | RZZZNFRZZ-ZTF  F1HREFE2HT
and Level 2 during the years 2009 and 2010. AR EETENERER -

B=ETEBREZERERAA 115
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e mERMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

3.4.2 Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued)

The following table represents the changes in Level 3 financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss for the vears ended 3|

December 2009 and 2010:

3

cREREE (B)
34 SRMEERAEENAYEE

3428 A FEAENEHTA (B)

TRENBE-_ZEAER=
T-TF+-A=t+—HILF
ERATEFABENEIL

TREENED -

2010 2009

—%-8F  —EENF

HK$’000 HK$'000

TET TET

As at | January m—HA— — 6,880
Gains recognized in discontinued PB4 |F4C % ¥

operations (Note 8) 3 ZJE)JJ%ZE (BfzE8) — 90
Disposal of discontinued HEBRIEEEER

operations — (6,970)

As at 31 December n+=—A=+—H — —

3.5 Capital management 35 BEXEE

The Group's objectives when managing capital, which is a broader

concept than the "equity” on the face of balance sheet, are—

(a) To comply with the capital requirements under the Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (Cap.57IN) for its subsidiaries

which are licensed corporations;

(b) To safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and

benefits for other stakeholders;
(c) To support the Group's stability and growth; and

(d) To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its

business.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.5 Capital management

The liquid capital is monitored daily by each individual licensed
subsidiary’s management, based on the Securities and Futures (Financial
Resources) Rules (Cap.571N).The required information is filed with the
Securities and Futures Commission on a timely basis. The Securities and
Futures Commission requires each licensed corporation to maintain a
level of required liquid capital which is the higher of floor requirement
ranging from HK$0.I million to HK$3 million or 5% of the aggregate of
its adjusted liabilities and clients” margin. All licensed corporations within
the Group complied with their required liquid capital during the years of
2009 and 2010.

The capital of the Group mainly comprises its total equity.

e BwERME

cREREE (B)
35 EXEE(H)

EREMBLANEREREES
kg MHER KA (FEEGH
B7INE) BAERRBES - UK
BREFRNEEBERZEER
ERFEN - EHFRHBEEHER

ZEEHRT  BRBEERREM
ERBERKEANT0IBERT
EIREATHREERFHLRAE
E%&EﬁﬁﬁAﬁﬂm5%W%W

ReE R_FTAFR-
EF*ﬁ%HﬁT%E%%%@ﬂ
NEmBRSERKFRE -

ARENEATIERREERA
B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e mERMEE

SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the Group's senior executive management. The Group’s
operating businesses are structured and managed separately according to the
nature of their operations and the services they provide. Each of the Group's
business segments represent a strategic business unit that offers services which
are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of the other
business segments. The placing and underwriting services had been classified
under brokerage and margin segment in last interim report. It has been
combined with corporate finance and advisory to form corporate finance
segment in the current year. Margin and other financing has been included in
brokerage and margin segment in last interim report. it has been reported as a
new margin and other financing segment in the current year, comparatives have
been restated to conform with the current year presentation. Details of each

of the business segments are as follows:-

(a) the dealing and broking segment engages in the provision of securities,
futures and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking to the

customers;

(b) the margin and other financing segment engages in the provision of
margin financing to margin customers, IPO loans and other loan financing

to the customers ;

(c) the corporate finance segment engages in the provision of advisory

services, placing and underwriting services;
(d) the asset management segment engages in asset management;
(e) the investment segment engages in investment holding of securities; and

(f)  the “others” segment mainly represents the rental income, provision of

information channel services and others.

Inter-segment transactions, if any, are conducted with reference to the prices
charged to third parties and there was no change in the basis during the years

ended 31 December 2009 and 2010.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RERMEE

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 4 DHBRE
The segment information provided to the management for the reportable RBE_ZTNEFR_Z-ZF+_HA
segments for the year ended 31 December 2009 and 2010 is as follows: ST-BLEFE AEBERATZRS

HREN D BEHDT -

For the year ended 3| December 2010 BE-Z-ZF+t-A=+t-ALFE
Margin
Dealing  and other
and broking ~financing ~ Corporate Asset
EER  #RR  finance management Investment  Others Eliminations Total

BEX% RHRE CRBE  AEER R& S fis it
HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
térn  TEr  TEn TEx  TEr  TER  TEx  TEx

Segment revenue and other income 7 B & REMMA

Sales to external customers BEFIDER 8113 1013% 126412 44570 1182 5771 — 65809
Inter-segment sales AP REHE = - 2984 = = = (2,984) =
Total fazt 368,113 101,39 129,39 44570 1,826 5771 (2,984) 658,094
Segment resuls pEES 137068 60522 69,180 9811 11826 - — 288407
Income tax expense SRR (35,783)
Proft for the year from RELEEH

continuing operations R 252,624
Profit for the year from BRIEEEH

discontinued operations ERg =
Tota B3t 252,624
Other segment information AR HER
Depreciation ik (9544)  (3581) (441  (1651) - — — (19208)
Finance costs BERA (33)  (4109) - - - - - (4142)

B=ETEBREZERERAA 119
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERME

4

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 4 ABHEE (B)
For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE_ZZNFT_A=T-RLFE
Margin
Dealing  and other
and broking financing ~ Corporate Asset
EER HRR finance  management  Investment Others Total
fexk  AtEE  OXEE EEER R& -4 it
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
TEL TEL TERL TEL TERL TEL TERL
Segment revenue and other income A EREMHA
Sales to external customers HETHEER 357763 0775 T4446 24061 56325 3715 587085
Inter-segment sales N REE - - — - - - -
Total @t 357,763 70,775 74446 2461 56,325 3715 587,085
Segment results NExE 143,102 3312 B08I 6028 56325 — 171848
Incorne tax expense FERAX (27.808)
Profit for the year from BEEEEH
continuing operations FERE A 244040
Profit for the year from BRIEEERH
discontinued operations ERET] 56,354
Totel &t 300394
Other segment information A BEH
Depreciation e (6827) (1,639) (1,544) (601) — — (10611)
Finance costs BEKR (17) (5151 — — — — (5168)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RERMEE

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5 WERHEMEA
An analysis of revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, and other income is W (MAREEERE) RAMKAD
as follows: AMWT
2010 2009
—B-%F —ETNE
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
Revenue: Yz
Dealing and broking: BERRRER
- Commission on securities -BHEERER
dealing and broking 330l 290,849 312,145
- Commission on futures —-HEBEERER
dealing and broking X :olliknA 56,749 32,555
- Handling income on dealing and broking —EERELEBNFEBUA 20,514 13,063
- Net income on leveraged foreign —BIRINEEE REL
exchange dealing and broking EZ L N I —
Margin and other financing: FRREMEE
- Interest income from margin loans —HFRERHN S LA 70,529 43,655
- Interest income from IPO loans —BRARBEERFSRA 4,937 8,349
- Interest income from banks —RITRHEMER
and other loan financing BEF B UA 24,022 18,771
- Interest income from
held-to-maturity investments —RERIBREMEWA 1,908 —
Corporate finance: PERE :
- Placing, underwriting and
sub-underwriting commission -RE BHEESBHANME 100,767 56,327
- Consultancy and financial
advisory fee income —ERLREBAERA 25,645 18,119
Asset management: EEERE
- Management fee income —EBBIWA 22,265 18,644
- Performance fee income —KBRBRA 22,305 5417

BXEZBEBREZERERLAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERME

5 REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (Continued) 5 WKHRRHEMEWA (E)
2010 2009
—2-2F —ZTNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Revenue: Yz
Income from investment holding; RERERBHORA :
- Net gain on financial assets
held for trading —FEEESREEN KR IFE 7,624 55,487
- Dividend income from listed
financial assets held for trading —REEBELTEREENREBA 4,202 838
652,317 583,370
Other income: HAWA -
Rental income HE WA 3,753 807
Information services income BRRBHA 1,718 2,000
Others Hity 306 908
5,777 3,715
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RERMEE

BR BT 18 B AT A
AR B RR AT S B AR A 0 & HUR A T

6 PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 6

The Group's profit before income tax is arrived at after charging:

BEREGFL

2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Other operating expenses include: Hih &R 4
- Auditor’s remuneration —ZHE M E 1,730 805
- Bank charges —RITEA 1,797 2,329
- Business trips —ERE 3,202 3,066
- Entertainment - REEME 4,650 2,277
- Handling charges -FEE 4,771 1,429
- Information services expense —BAREHX 10,927 10,244
- Loss on disposal of fixed assets - HEETEENER 82 —
- Marketing, advertising and
promotion expense —-MHEHE  BEREBEHRX 5,409 1963
- Minimum lease payments
under land and buildings —ITHMRETFREHENRKEESE 8,190 15,111
- Professional and consultancy fee —BERHAE 12,129 10,251
- Repair and maintenance
(including system maintenance) —kEkgE (BERRER) 8,566 6,404
Staff costs (including directors’ BEIRAK (BREZME
remuneration (Note 28)): (MizE28)) -
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e EARRE 146,501 139,027
Pension scheme contributions R EIHR 1,613 1,428
148,114 140,455
Finance costs: RLE KA
- bank loans and overdrafts —RITEFRBEX 4,084 5,150
- others —HAfl 58 18
4,142 5,168

BXEZBEBREZERERLAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e mERMEE

7  INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year 2009 and
2010 respectively.

FREHEAX

BEAMNBEHIRDAIR -_ZTAFRZ
T-TENEREELMNGAERTE

FIR B 16.5% R -

2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTERT TET
Hong Kong profits tax BEMED

- Charge for the year —FNRX 38,258 27,808
- Overprovision in prior years —BEFEBRERE (1,001) —

Deferred income tax (Note |5) EEFTER (MiEE 15)
- Current year temporary differences -~ AEERRERE (1,474) —
Income tax expense PRSTR 35,783 27,808

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before income tax
using the statutory rate to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as

follows:

BRRERZER R ENBRASHA
HMAOBIRR X BRERB R BN

BERXHEDT :

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1+-HLEE

2010 2009

—B-EF —TTNF

HK$’000 HK$'000

TERT FET

Profit before income tax BRETE BB R A 288,407 271,848
Tax at the statutory tax rate REEME16.5% (ZTTNEF :

at 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) 16.5%) FTEMTIEA 47,587 44,855

Overprovision in prior years BEFERERE (1,001) _

Income not subject to tax IEERBUA (10,507) (11,355)

Expenses not deductible for tax s LR 2 X 1,963 3,275

Utilization of previously BRABTTEERZ

unrecognized tax losses HIBEE (5,046) (10,029)

Tax losses not recognized AERBIEERE 7 154

Temporary difference not recognised Hth R IR £ 58 2,780 908

Income tax expense PSR < 35,783 27,808
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 8
On 30 October 2009, the Group transferred its equity interests in Guotai
Junan Investments (Hong Kong) Limited to GJFHL. Guotai Junan Investments
(Hong Kong) Limited and its subsidiaries were engaged in investment holding

in equity funds and provision of consultancy services in Shenzhen.

The cash flows of the Discontinued Operations for the period ended 30
October 2009 are as follows:

e BwERME

BRIEREXK
“EENFTAZ=TH AREEHEHE
RERELZEHFRE (BE) ARAAMN
BRREERTERERERER -B%E
ZEFRE (BB ERAAREMBL
A ERAESRERE RERYIRH
BRRT -

HE_ZTNFTA=THLEHEXE
EREEZXZBORERES MM -

For the period ended
30 October 2009
BZ-_ZTTNEF

+TA=+BI1LHE

HK$'000

FHET

Cash at beginning of the period HHA e 23,509
Net cash generated from operating activities RETHEENREFHE 5,380
Net cash generated from investing activities REZDHELENRFH 7,763
Disposal of discontinued operations (Note 30) HEBKIEEEER (M 30) (36,652)

Cash at end of year FEAE

B=ETEBREZERERAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERME

8 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

The results of the Discontinued Operations for the period ended 30 October

2009, which have been included in the consolidated income statement, were as

EREEEEYR (&)
AAARBRERNBE_TTNAFTA
SHRLEHEEREEEXBNRED

follows: T
For the period ended
30 October 2009
BE_ZTNE
TA=THILHME
HK$'000
FAET
Revenue and other income: Yogs R E A A
Consultancy and financial advisory fee income BREKREZAERA 6,477
Net gain on financial assets held for trading HEEETREERRFE 142,227
Net gain on financial assets designated at fair value RAFEFANEEEERZFH 90
Realised gain on available-for-sale investments AP ERENER s 3616
Gain on re-measurement of assets/liabilities BN EREGENEE BBKE
classified as held for sale 5,687
Dividend income R B A 3,385
161,482
Staff costs BIpA (7.876)
Depreciation e (10)
Management fee expenses EEBHY (2,450)
Other operating expenses Hi G e (3924)
Profit attributable to minority investors REESVHHRES
of an investment fund JE 1 3% ) (89,760)
Profit before income tax B TS BE Al A 57,462
Income tax expense PriSHiA % (1,108)
Profit for the year FRmF 56,354
Attributable to: ATNBIBREIG -
Equity holders of the Company RRAERTEA A 56,354
Earnings per share for profit from discontinued RARIEEFE ARG
operations attributable to equity BRI EEB T
holders of the Company RS
- Basic and diluted (HK$) —EXREE (Br) 4.6cents fll

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the Discontinued

Operations at the date of disposal are disclosed in Note 30.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIVIDENDS

The Board has declared and paid an interim dividend of HK$32,800,000
(HK$0.02 per ordinary share) for the six months ended 30 June 2010 on 26
August 2010 and 8 October 2010 respectively.

The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK$82,000,000 (HK$0.05 per
share) on 9 March 2011 for the year ended 31 December 2010. The final
dividend proposed after the reporting date has not been recognized as a

liability in the consolidated financial statements at the reporting date.

Dividends amounting to HK$150,000,000 for the year ended 31 December
2009 represent dividends declared and fully paid to GJFHL, the then sole
shareholder of the Company.

e BwERME

KRE
EEep - T-EFN\A-+RBEZ
Z-ZE+AN\BESRIEH LIRS

HE-_Z-ZERAB=1THIEREAAHN
2 % £.32,800,0008 7T (L @RS K
0.02/&7T)

é%A \ZE-—F=ZANARBE=

—EF+ A=+ BLEFERERER
?Eﬁ;ﬁﬂx £.82,000,0007% 7T (F20.05/%
7T) c MEBMEBEZRER RERE M
ARREAPREGREMBREAERA
—HEE -

BE-TINF+-A=+-RILEE
# 8 4150,000,0008 7T BEIRER
B UBARRAIER2E-BRREZR
EREBEREHEXAM -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e mERMEE

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)  Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2010 is based on the profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company of HK$250,685,000 (2009: HK$298,307,000) and the
weighted average of 1,428,822,000 ordinary shares (2009: 1,230,000,000
ordinary shares in issue before listing of the shares on the Stock
Exchange, as if the shares had been outstanding during the entire year of

2009) in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

10 BREA

(a)

SREZEF

Bz2-_T-ZTH+-RA=1+—H1t
E BRERBMDBEARF
% 58 AJE1h % F1/250,685,000
AT (ZETNF : 298,307,000
L) & M1,428,822,0000% B % 17
LRRMMET S (ZESNEF - R
BROEBXMLEMAIE &I
1,230,000,0008% & i % « M 10 #%
ERONER-_STNFRAFEE
TR FEWT -

Weighted average number

of ordinary share

ERERMETIE
2010 2009
—E-ZfF —TENF
Ordinary shares issued (Note 26a(})) BETL@AR (FIFE26a() I |
Issuance of shares upon the
Reorganization (Note 26a(ii)) SHE®BBETRGD (5 26a(i) 999 999
Effect of Capitalization Issue (Note 26a(iil)) BT E (M 26aliii) 1,229,999,000 1,229,999,000
Effect of shares issued on the BRARBERMEITRG
IPO (Note 26a(iv)) MF g (M 26aliv) 198,822,000 —
As at 31 December KW+=ZA=+—H 1,428,822,000 1,230,000,000
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BREFEF

Diluted earnings per share are the same as basic earnings per share as

there is no diluted ordinary shares existed during the year (2009: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RERMEE

Il PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 1N 9% BERRE
Office Furniture Land & Leasehold Motor
equipment  and fixtures buildings  improvements vehicles Total
BAERE HAREE 1HREF HENERHB ot @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TEL

The Group KRB
As at | January 2009 R=2Bn%-A-H
Cost KA 36,503 1,187 — 5,057 1,381 44,128
Accumulated depreciation ZitHhE (21,888) (650) — (2803) (499) (25,840)
Net carrying amount REFE 14615 537 — 2,254 882 18,288
For the year ended HE-ZENE+-R=1-H

31 December 2009, restated L[ » BEF
Opening net carrying amount ~ EAIREFE 14615 537 — 2254 882 18,268
Additions as previously reported NE + 105t Al RS 2397 — 52920 — — 55317
Addition, effect of adoption ~ RE - RAAB A& RERE 175

of HKAS 17 (Amendment) (B3T%) M2 — — 291,765 — — 291,765
Arising from discontinued BRIEGEEHES

operations (Note 30) (W3t 30) (30) — — — — (30)
Depreciation arising from BRLEERH

discontinued operations EEHE

(Note 8) (FrzE8) (10) — — — — (10)
Depreciation ik (8393) (277) (350) (1,131) (460) (10611)
Closing net carrying amount ~~ FRRAFE 8579 260 344335 1123 0 354719

As at 31 December 2009 RZZEENF+ZA=1+-H

Cost, as previously reported ~ B(AS * W% AT S 37378 1,187 52920 5,057 1,381 97923
Fffect on adoption of HKAS 17 FME B G HERIE 175

(Amendment) (B3TK) Mg — — 291,765 — — 291,765
Cost, as restated A BE 37378 1,187 344,685 5,057 1,381 389,688
Accumulated depreciation it (28799) (927) (350) (3934) (959) (34969)
Net carrying amount, as restated JREE(E + BEF 8,579 260 344335 1123 42 354719
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e mERMEE

|| PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 11 N -BERRE (&)

Office Furniture Land & Leasehold Motor
equipment  and fixtures buildings  improvements vehicles Total
BAERE HARKE 1HRET BENERE - @t
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
The Group (Continued) r58 (&)
For the year ended Hz-2-%%
31 December 2010 TZAZ+t-HL5FE
Opening net carrying amourt, ~ FAIREF(E »
as previously reported NEARE 8,579 260 52,570 [,123 422 62,954
Effect on adoption of HKAS 17 REAFEE & ERIE 17 %
(Amendment) (B3TK) ME 2 — — 291,765 — — 291,765
Opening net carrying amount, ~ FAIREF(E »
as restated EL] 8,579 260 344,335 1,123 o)) 354719
Additions hE 6,341 = 104,091 3917 623 114,972
Disposal k3 = = = (82) — (82)
Depreciation e (7,622) (254) (9,182) (1,642) (508) (19,208)
Closing net carrying amount ~ FRREFE 7,298 6 439,244 3316 537 450,401
As at 31 December 2010 R-%-%%
+ZA=t-H
Cost AR 43,719 1,187 448,776 3917 2,004 499,603
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (36,421) (1,181) (9,532) (601) (1,467) (49,202)
Net carrying amount REFE 7,298 6 439,244 3316 537 450,401

The land & building included land in Hong Kong held on leases of between 10

to 50 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BwERME

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 12 RENE
The Group rEE 2010 2009
—E-%% —
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT TET
At | January R—H—H — —
Additions NE 115,055 —
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 115,055 —
No direct operating expense has been incurred for the investment properties BE_T-ZF+_A=1T—HLLFE

for the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009: Nil).

The investment properties represent land in Hong Kong held on leases of

between 10 to 50 years.

The fair value of the investment properties was HK$116.3 million as at 31
December 2010 valued by independent, professionally qualified valuer
Cushman & Wakefield Valuation Advisory Services (HK) Limited. Valuations
were based on current prices in an active market. No impairment has been
recognized for the investment properties for the year ended 31 December

2010 (2009: Nil).

BEYEEEEL TREELENT (=
TENE: T) -

BREYERNEARI0E0FERYEE
Rt o

REUEXREKRAEMRRTERE
SERBRQAME  REMER_Z
—ZF+ZA=1T—HWATERI6.3
BEAT BEDERNEBMSNRT
BB -HE_T-—ZEF+_A=+—H
LEE  BEBRIARENFENE(ZZT
NEF) o

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13 BREE

Trading Club
The Group rights membership Total
rEE X5 EMER e

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET TET

As at | January 2009, 31 December 2009 E’\\\:%égjli_ﬂ —H-
and 31 December 2010 TNFT_A=1t—HK
:§—§¢+:HE+—E

Opening and closing net book amount FONRFEREEFE 1913 910 2,823
As at 31 December 2009 and 2010, the Group had three trading rights in The RZZZEAFR-ZF-TF+A=T
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and one trading right in the Hong Kong —B AREREREBHMERIME
Futures Exchange Limited. RARIN=ZHERZERBTEHERSM

ARRAIE—

%2 51 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e mERMEE

14 OTHER ASSETS 14 HitEE
The Group 2010 2009
AEE —2-BF  —TIAF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT TET
Deposits with the Stock Exchange: REERZFTE RS -
- Compensation fund —HEES 150 150
- Fidelity Fund - HRE® 150 150
- Stamp duty deposit —EH RS 500 500
Admission fee paid to Hong Kong INTEAFREE
Securities Clearing Company Limited BERARNEANE 150 150
Guarantee fund paid to Hong Kong INTEETREE
Securities Clearing Company Limited BERAFRNRES 370 340
Deposit with HKFE Clearing REBHELEE
Corporation Limited BERARINRE 1,500 1,500
Funds deposits with the SFC REBEGHNES 50 50
2,870 2,840
The carrying amounts of the Group’s other assets approximate to their fair AEEEMEENEAEREAATEMR
values. 5o

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured in full on temporary

differences at tax rate that are expected to apply when the assets are realized
or liabilities settled, which is 16.5% (2009: 16.5%).

The movements on the deferred income tax assets are as follows:

15 BEHREERRE

BB HEERBRBRREREENE
EEERAEHEANKNE165% (=8
16.5%) NEBZE2512 (=

hE

ETAF  16.5%) ©

BEMRGHEEZSNT :

=
<

2010 2009

—E-2F —ETNE

HK$’000 HK$'000

THER TET

At | January K—A—A — —
Credited to the consolidated AR E ER

income statement (Note 7) (BzE7)
- Current year temporary differences —AFEERER 1,474 —
At 31 December wt+-—A=+—H 1,474 —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

I5 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the vear,
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same

taxation jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred tax assets and (liabilities) Unused tax losses
BEWFEER (RfF) ABRHEESR
2010 2009

“2-8F _TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000

e BwERME

15 BEHREERAE (&)

FRAEREMEREERABE B QLR
R HR M GHERNRE) 0T

Accelerated tax depreciation Total
MEHERE @zt
2010 2009 2010 2009

“E-%F CTINF ZE-%F CITAR
HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000

TER TAL TER TER TER TER
At | January ®—A—H — — — — — —
Credited/(Charged) to the REFa R
consolidated income statement 5 A/ (31F)
- Current year temporary -AERERER
differences 2,530 — (1,056) — 1,474 —
At 31 December Rt-A=1+-AH 2,530 — (1,056) — 1474 —

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$26.3
million as at 31 December 2010 (2009: HK$49 million), that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arose. Deferred income tax assets are recognized for unused
tax losses to the extent that sufficient future taxable profits will be available in
the subsidiaries in which the losses arose against which the unused tax losses

can be utilized in the near future.

RZZE-TF+=-A=+—H £5E
REBBNREEBRLR2638EET
(ZEZNF 9B 8B FRAA
REBEEEBBARMNARER S
Fl - WEABBEOHNBRAAIAERZERK
JE R B M ] AR S AR E A FE
BE ARADANEERRAETAH
GHEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERME

I5

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued) 15 EEREEEREE (&)
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally BEREHEERBBRREHRITNE
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and BERBEBRAAEENEHEELNE
when the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxation authority. The RA-BBEAT - THELER BT
deferred income tax assets and liabilities are to be recovered and settled after MEHEEREBESR —FRKEHE
one year and the following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, E UTREPEEEHERELEERR
are shown in the balance sheet. F AN O
2010 2009
i ZETNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT TET
Deferred income tax assets ERFERHEE 2,530 —
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFMEHEE (1,056) —
1,474 —
HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS 16 HEIHRE

The movement in unlisted held-to-maturity investments which comprise one

senior notes issued by a private company is summarized as follows:

EETMHEEIHANKRE (BRE—FML
EREBRTNELRER) NESHMRN
T

The Group 2010 2009
rEE —E-FF —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000

TERT FHET

At | January Kn—H—H — —
Additions 120 77,833 —
Impairment losses HERE = —
At 31 December RT-A=1+—H 77,833 —

The Group has not reclassified any financial assets measured at amortized cost

rather than at fair value during the year (2009: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BwERME

17 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 17 BTEFHNERRBR

The Group 2010 2009
3 —2-%5  -ITAS
HK$’000 HK$'000

THER FHET

Margin loans HFRER 1,975,894 758276
Term loans to customers BYEFHTHER — 102,455
Gross loans and advances to customers BYEFHNERRBRER 1,975,894 860,731
Less: allowance for impairment B ORE R — —
1,975,894 860,731

Margin financing operations

The Group provides clients with margin financing for securities transactions,
which are secured by clients’ securities held as collateral. Each client has a
maximum credit limit based on the quality of collateral held and the financial
background of the client. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and has a Credit and Risk Management Department to

monitor credit risks.

Margin loans to the clients are secured by the underlying pledged securities,
bear interest rate with reference to the Hong Kong dollar prime rate and are
repayable on demand.The carrying value of margin loans approximates to their
fair value. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the Directors, an
ageing analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature of margin
loan businesses. The amount of credit facilities granted to margin clients is
determined by the discounted market value of the collateral securities
accepted by the Group. As at 3|1 December 2010, the total value of securities
pledged as collateral in respect of the margin loans was approximately
HK$12,216 million (2009: HK$8,782 million). The balances represent the

market value of the securities as at 31 December 2010 and 2009.

FRBEXK

AREREFXHAETEPRESRA
B URPHNESFFEARER -8
AEFPHRBEEREIUMFHERSR
MWEZREFNUBRESAEE - K&
BIER A H A KB BRI BR 2
B WKL TEEREREEHMER
FERR -

BIRPHAREFAEBECEEES
ER BEATRESEFERFS ¥R
ERERE ARERNEHEEAQT
BRE -BREERAE ERFEER
EBMNEE - RRAOMU T REEN
BE HWBERBRRRIN BTHE
RENEERABIREBEASEEMNN
BERESMAMEEE -N_T—ZF
TZA=+T—B RFREREAR
MEEREFBENARI12216BEET
(ZZThF 8 7NEBETT) - %54
BEEFN-_T-TFER-TTNF+
“A=+—BKHmE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e mERMEE

17 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued) 17 KBFEFNERRBR (B)

136

Term loans to customers

The Group also provides term loans to the customers. In determining the
interest rates, reference will be made to the credit standing of the relevant
customers and the quality of the collateral pledged. As at 3|1 December 2009,
the term loans granted to the customers amounting to HK$100,000,000 and
its accrued interest amounting to HK$2,455,000 are fully secured by listed
securities pledged with the Group as collateral with undiscounted market
value of HK$24 | million. Those term loans have been fully repaid in 2010. The
carrying amounts of the term loans to customers approximate to their fair

values.

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, all loans and advances to customers are
neither pass due nor impaired and no impairment allowance has been

provided during 2010 and 2009.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

(a) Analysis of accounts receivable

The carrying value of accounts receivable arising from the course of

e BwERME

18 EWFIE
(a) EUFBEBZH

REBEBBIERRELNEKK

business of the Group are as follows:- ENREENT -
2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Accounts receivable arising from BEE MR EBEEN KR
dealing and broking
— cash and custodian clients -RekAEERP 50,134 45210
— the Stock Exchange and — BT R E M AEE T
other clearing houses 186,051 20,459
— brokers and dealers —RERXFHH 679,782 239,510
Accounts receivable arising from BiE - BEER -
underwriting, asset management, EEME L& ARE
corporate finance and advisory PITEE 4 O IR TR
services
— Corporate clients and —EZFLREREES
investment funds 31,444 32,336
Gross B 947,411 337,515
Less: allowance for impairment B R ERE (11,828) (3,253)
Net H 935,583 334,262

BXEZBEBREZERERLAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e mERMEE

I8 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

(b)  Accounts receivable neither past due nor impaired

18 EWHE (&)
(b) SEARAH B Y E

Accounts
Accounts receivable
receivable from
Accounts  from the Stock corporate
receivable Exchange and Accounts clients and
from cash other clearing receivable investment
and custodian houses from brokers funds
clients JE W B 32 P and dealers b
EURER Rt BRELR EFRRE Total
HEEFRE GEFFE REBRE ESRE @zt
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
A&H TR TER TER TER TER
As at 31 December 2010 R-F-%F
TZR=t-H
Neither past due nor impaired W & @ HIk B 38,224 186,051 679,782 30,759 934,816
As at 3| December 2009 R-BELE
+ZR=t+-H
Neither past due nor impaired I & &1 B3k i (E 41875 20459 239,510 31,986 333830

Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients which are neither
past due nor impaired represent unsettled client trades on various
securities exchanges transacted on the last two business days prior to
the year end date. Such receivable balances are neither past due nor
impaired as they are within the credit limit approved by the Credit

Committee and under normal market convention.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

(c)  Accounts receivable past due but not impaired

e BwERME

18 FEUWERIE (&)
(c) EBHEXREENEKE

Accounts Accounts

receivable receivable from

Accounts  from the Stock corporate

receivable Exchange and Accounts clients and

from cash other clearing receivable investment

and custodian houses from brokers funds

clients B U Bt % i and dealers it
EWRER REM EHELR EFRiE Total
TERFHE EEFFE REBEHE Ee%E @t
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
rEE TEr TEn TEn TEn TEn

As at 31 December 2010 R-E-%%
+ZA=t-H
Past due less than 6 months BN AR 74 — — 634 708
Past due 6 - 12 months BHAET_EA - - - 51 5
Past due over | year ME—FN L = = = — =
74 — — 685 759
Fair value of collateral BRRHATE 64,191 — — — 64,191
As at 3| December 2009 RZZEENE
+ZA=t-H

Past due less than 6 months BN E AR 77 — — — 77
Past due 6 - 12 months BHAET_EA — — — 50 50
Past due over | year BH—FNME — — - 300 300
77 — — 350 427
Fair value of collateral BN ATE 120,845 — — — 120,845
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERME

I8 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

(c)

Accounts receivable past due but not impaired (Continued)

Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients which are past due
but not impaired represent client trades on various securities exchanges
which are unsettled beyond the settlement date. When the cash and
custodian clients failed to settle on settlement date, the Group has a
right to force-sell the collaterals underlying the securities transactions.
The outstanding accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients as at
31 December 2009 and 2010 are considered as past due but not
impaired after taking into consideration the recoverability from
collaterals. Collaterals held against such loans are publicly traded

securities.

Accounts receivable from corporate clients and investment funds past
due but not impaired represent accounts receivables arising from asset
management, corporate finance and advisory services which have not yet
been settled by clients after the Group's normal credit period of 3

months from the date of invoice.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

(d)

Impaired accounts receivable

e BwERME

18 FEUWERIE (&)
(d) EREEKFE

Accounts

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable from

receivable  from the Stock corporate

from cash Exchange and Accounts clients and

and custodian other clearing receivable investment

clients houses from brokers funds

EhHRe JE W % and dealers Elt%
RitE Rt BRELR EFRRE Total
EFRE BEATA REERE ESRE @t
The Group HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
KB TER TER TER TR TR

As at 31 December 2010 R=2-%%
TZA=t-H
Impaired accounts receivable BRERKHE 11,836 = = = 11,836
Less: allowance for impairment 3 © il [ # & (11,828) — — — (11,828)
Net £ 8 — - - 8
Fair value of collateral ERmM R TE 8 — - - 8
As at 3| December 2009 R=2En%E
TZA=t-H

Impaired accounts receivable ERERKHE 3,258 — — — 3258
Less: allowance for impairment 3 © A E B (3,253) — — — (3,253)
Net 38 5 — — — 5
Fair value of collateral EARNATE 5 - - - 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e mERMEE

I8 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

(d) Impaired accounts receivable (Continued)

Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients are considered
impaired when clients failed to settle according to settlement terms. As
at 31 December 2010, gross impaired accounts receivable from cash and
custodian clients amounted to HK$1 1,836,000 (2009: HK$3,258,000) and
impairment allowance of HK$ 1,828,000 (2009: HK$3,253,000) has been

provided against these “impaired” receivables.

The carrying amount of these “impaired” receivables are HK$8,000
(2009: HK$5,000) as of 31 December 2010.

Movements on the provision for impairment of accounts receivable are

18 FEWFE (&)

(d)

EREEKHE (&

ERPARERBELEERIETES
B BUReREERPHEER
BERE R-_TE-—ZTF+-A=
T—B BREERKRERTER
3B #8583 11,836,000/ 7T (=
TTHEF 3,268,000 7T) ¥ E
stk E [2RE] B FIAR RAE
B 511,8280008 T (ZE TN
F : 3,253,000 7T) °
R-B-TE+-A=+—-0 %
ZEREIEKRENRAER
8,0008 L (ZZ T N F : 5,000%
L) °

FBUHEREREEDNOT

as follow:
2010 2009
—g-8F  —TIAF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR THET
As at | January n—H—H 3,253 13,688
Increase in impairment allowance
charged to consolidated RizE @ RaT1E
income statement RER I 10,012 2
Uncollectible amounts written-off
during the year B HEE T AT M e o (1,431) (8,588)
Amounts written-back during the
year released to consolidated
income statement FARFALZRE W& R B FIE (6) (1,849)
As at 31 December Rt-—A=t—H 11,828 3253
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RERMEE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

19 BARE  REREMEKRE

The Group 2010 2009

AEE —E-EF —TENF

HK$°000 HK$'000

TER FHET

Prepayments, utility and other deposits BNFE - AHRERALES 8,445 6,760

Other receivables H b FEU IR 3,525 343

Total e 11,970 7,103
The Company VNN

Prepayments, utility and other deposits BNRIE - AHFHEEEMEZES 386 —

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and Company's prepayments, deposits

and other receivables approximate to their fair values.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

AEERARAMBENFTE  RERE
R FTRRNREERE A FERS

20 BEAVEFABENERHEE

The Group 2010 2009
ARE =5 —ETNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THER TET
Financial assets held for trading: RIEBEENERMEE -
Listed equity investments, at fair value FHRAKRE  BATE
- in Hong Kong —REE 84,099 92,567

BXEZBEBREZERERLAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e mERMEE

2] CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND CLIENT TRUST BANK

21

RERBITEBREFERRTSE

BALANCES #
The Group 2010 2009
A%E —g-%F  —TTAS
HK$’000 HK$'000
TAER FAET
Cash and bank balances Be MIRITHE 296,812 290,284
Fixed deposits with bank RITEETFES 144,819 170,000
Client trust bank balances BEEFEBTER 5,874,971 5,679,243
6,316,602 6,139,527
The Company NN
Cash and bank balances We RIRITHE ]} —

The Group maintains trust and segregated accounts with authorized financial
institutions to hold clients’ deposits arising from normal business transactions.
The Group is not allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its own

obligations under the Securities & and Futures Ordinance (Cap.571).
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22

CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND CLIENT TRUST BANK 21

BALANCES (Continued)

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statements, cash and cash

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RERMEE

&% (8)

RERBTEBREFERRTE

REeHeRERNE  RekReF

equivalents comprises of the following:- EBMBEATEE
The Group 2010 2009
REE —E-ZF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Cash and bank balances Re MIRITHEH 296,812 290,284
Fixed deposits with bank with original REHBAA=EANUA
maturity within three months HRITEHER 144,819 170,000
441,631 460,284
INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 22 AKBARIRE
2010 2009
—2-ZF —ETNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Investments, at cost: BE ERAE :
Unlisted shares JEETRMD 1,268,440 —

BXEZBEBREZERERLAF
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mEMBRERME

22 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

22 RHBLARKRE (&)

(a) As at 31 December 2010, the Company has direct and indirect interests (a) RZZE—ZF+-_A=+—H &K
in the following principal subsidiaries: ARETIEENBARTHER
S S
Countrylplace
and date of Issued and
incorporation fully paid-up Attributable Principal activities and
Company name HhRIER/ share capital equity interest place of operation
e WEREH ERTRBERE Felh g IBRBREEHS
Direct Indirect
E% i3
Guotai Junan Samoa/ 28 June 1995 HK$31,980,000 100% — Investment holding, Hong Kong
(Hong Kong) Limited BEG/-NAAE 31,980,000 7T RERR  FF
BFE% (%) AR2A  AAZT/\R
Guotai Junan Securities Hong Kong/ 8 July 1993 HK$600,000,000 — 100% Securities dealing and broking,
(Hong Kong) Limited B8/ -NN=F 600,000,000 &7 Hong Kong
ARERER (BR) tANH ERRERLRL BB
BRDA
Guotai Junan Futures Hong Kong/ 3 August 1995 HK$50,000,000 — 100% Futures dealing and broking,
(Hong Kong) Limited B8/ -NNAE 50,000,000 &7t Hong Kong
ARELHE (BR) NA=R HEEERAL BB
BRDA

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BwERME

22 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 22 RMBARRE (8)
Countrylplace
and date of Issued and
incorporation fully paid-up Attributable Principal activities and
Company name HRRIER/ share capital equity interest place of operation
e LA ERTRERRA Fefh g IREBREELH
Direct Indirect
ER Rk
Guotai Junan Finance Hong Kong/ 3 August 1995 HK$1,000,000 — 100% Money lending and trading
(Hong Kong) Limited B/ -NWNAE 1,000,000 %7 in securities, Hong Kong
RRERHKERERAR  \A=H BEREREE Bk
Guotai Junan Capital Limited Hong Kong/ 8 August 1995 HK$50,000,000 — 100% Provision of investment
ARZZRARRAT B/ -NNAE 50,000,000 7T advisory services, Hong Kong
NANH RERAHARE B
Guotai Junan Assets Hong Kong/ 15 August 1995 HK$5,000,000 — 100% Asset management, Hong Kong
(Asia) Limited B8/ -NNEE 5,000,000 7L BEER B4
AFEYAEEE (BM)  N\ATEA
ERAT
Guotai Junan Fund Hong Kong/ 3 January 2008 HK$10,000,000 — 50% Asset management and trading
Management Limited' EB/2F5\% 10,000,000 A7t in securities, Hong Kong
AFEZESERARLE —A=H BEEERESRE B
Guotai Junan FX Limited Hong Kong/ 31 March 2010 HK$30,000,000 — 100% Leveraged foreign exchange
BRERNEERARF E5/"5-% 30,000,000 7 dealing and broking
=A=t-H Hong Kong
BEANER SR
B &R
Notes: ik

(b)

I. The Group considers that it has the ability to govern the financial and

operating policies of the entity as the Group has the power to appoint or

remove the majority of members of Board.

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,

interest-free and

repayable on demand. The carrying amount approximates to its fair value

as at each balance sheet date.

RAARERENZEXBRK
8 MULKERRBENEE
REBHER

EEERZHAK
HEENUT

(b) ﬁ%%@“ﬁ#ﬁ
BUEMBRARFBARER 28
THE Ih@@ REEER K
REEEATERA

B=ETEBREZERERAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e mERMEE

23

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

23 FENFRIE

2010 2009
—F-%F ZETNF
The Group HK$’000 HK$'000
e | FTER TET
Accounts payable arising from REERSLEBEENEMNFR -
dealing and broking
- clients —&F 6,682,318 587396
- brokers and dealers - RERZFHHE 71,275 76,895
- the Stock Exchange and
other clearing houses — BT R E AR P — 4,359
Accounts payable arising from underwriting, EE I - EEEE « RERMER
asset management, corporate finance FARBEENENFKIE
and advisory services
- corporate clients —hEEP 25,347 —
6,778,940 5955215

The majority of the accounts payable balances is repayable on demand except

where certain accounts payable to clients represent margin deposits received

from clients for their trading activities under normal course of business. Only

the excess amounts over the required margin deposits stipulated are repayable

on demand.

The Group has a practice to satisfy all the requests for payment immediately

within | business day. No ageing analysis is disclosed as in the opinion of

Directors, the aged analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature

of these businesses.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2010 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RERMEE

23 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (Continued) 23 ENRE(B)
Accounts payable to clients also include those payables in trust accounts with e T &P RFIE N I BN 3R
authorized institutions of HK$5,875 million (2009: HK$5,679 million), Hong BETEEPM5875BEEBTL (ZETA
Kong Futures Exchange Clearing Corporation Limited, and other futures F:567988ET)  BEHERESR
dealers of HK$601 million (2009: HK$ 178 million). RARREMBERSHEH01BER

T(ZETHAF - 178EEBTT) °

Accounts payable are non-interest bearing except for the accounts payable to fRERE P SRS - BN RIES A G
the clients. B
The carrying amounts of the Group's accounts payable approximate to their AEERMNFENREERE R TER
fair values. P2
24 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 24 HttBEARERERRE
2010 2009
—E-%F —EENF
The Group HK$°000 HK$'000
rEE TER TAET
Other payables Hofth & - 3R 3,267 47,554
Accrued liabilities FERT IR 102,894 90,797
106,161 138,351
The Company VAN/NE)
Accrued liabilities FEET IR 1,220 —
Other payables and accrued liabilities are non interest bearing and have an HithERRBREM KBRS - BYF
average term of three months. R AIMEA -
The carrying amounts of the Group's other payables and accrued liabilities AEEHMENTE R B FRENERER
approximate to their fair values. BEEEATERE -

B=ETEBREZERERAA 149
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e mERMEE

25 BANK BORROWINGS 25 SMITER
2010 2009
—E-%% —EENF
The Group HK$’000 HK$'000
ZN L FERT TET
Total unsecured bank borrowings EIRMRITENEE — 500,000
The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes and the REFEER  TEBMBERENEE

BRENRR R

contractual repricing dates at the respective balance dates are as follows:

AHMENTEER RN

T~
2010 2009
—E-EF —EENF
The Group HK$’000 HK$'000
REE FET FAT
6 months or less 6EAIAT 500,000

The Group's bank borrowings bear interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offered

Rate plus 1% per annum at each balance sheet date.

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate their fair values as the

impact to discounting is not significant.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2010 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE TSR R MEE

26 RA - ROBERAMREE
(a) RERBHEE

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND OTHER RESERVE

(a) Share capital and share premium

The Company Vi N/NE|
Amount
&%
Number of Number of
authorized issued and fully
shares paid shares Share Share
EE ERTRAR capital premium Total
gk 4= gk 4= R R EE st
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TERL TERL TEL
At | January 2009, RZZEZNE-A
31 December 2009 —B ZETNE
and | January 2010 +-A=+-H
k-Z-ZF
Issue of authorized shares FIDEER D
(Note () (PE() 10,000,000,000 — — —
Allotment of shares pursuant RIFR () B B %
to the share swap (Note i) in (HEE i) — 999 — 1,268,440 1268440
Capitalization for issuance B ETHRR
of new shares (Note iii) (Fsx i) — 1229,999,000 123,000 (123,000) —
Shares issuance pursuant REZHEE
to the Global Offering Bk R
(Note iv) (FizEv) — 410,000,000 41,000 1,722,000 1,763,000
Share issuance costs incurred KEEEENRD
in the current year (Note v) BARA (V) — — — (98717) (98,717
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-ZF
+ZA=+-H 10,000,000,000 1,640,000,000 164,000 2,768,723 2,932,723

BXEZBEBREZERERLAF
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mEMBRERME

26 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND OTHER RESERVE (Continued)

(a)  Share capital and share premium (Continued)

Notes:

0)

(i)

On 8 March 2010, the Company was incorporated with limited liability in
Hong Kong with authorized share capital of HK$1,000,000,000 divided into
10,000,000,000 shares of par value HK$0.10 each. On the same date, one
share was issued at par value to Guotai Junan Holdings Limited,
representing 100% of issued share capital and the Company became a

wholly owned subsidiary of Guotai Junan Holdings Limited.

Pursuant to a share swap agreement dated 14 June 2010, the Company
acquired the entire issued share capital of Guotai Junan (Hong Kong)
Limited from GJFHL in consideration for the Company issuing and allotting
999 shares at par to Guotai Junan Holdings Limited. After the share swap,
the Company became the holding company of the subsidiaries now

comprising the Group.

Pursuant to the Shareholders’ Resolution dated 19 June 2010, the Company
capitalized an amount of HK$122,999,900 from the share premium account;
and the sum was applied in paying up in full at par 1,229,999,000 shares,

which were allotted and issued to Guotai Junan Holdings Limited.

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 8 July 2010 and
410,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were issued at HK$4.3 per
share. The excess of the proceeds over the nominal value of the total
number of ordinary shares issued of HK$ 1,722 million was credited to the

share premium account.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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26 BA - BRthnBEREMEE (E)
(a) RARRGEE(E)

P EE -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

ADRRZE-ZEF=A/N\BE
BEEAMKIABERAR AT
FBA £1,000,000,000 7T * 5 A
10,000,000,0008% & f% I {50.10
BILAORD - RER - 1BRERHIE
AERTTERELRERBRA
Al ZRNAZHEBTRA -
ADRKBEARELERERA
ANZERBAR -

BER-_F-TF A THAL
N ERGE - ARARERE
ZoRmERKBERER (B8)
BRRAMABSHITBRA - RE
RARAIEREERNERE ZERE
PR B BT RECHO9OBIR 0 » B
DERE - ARBKAREERE
EEMBARMNERAF -

BE-Z-FEXATARNK
RRBR ARREBERNE
1B BR P £ 122,999,9007% 7L & A
bt ZEREERAELR
1,229,999,000 8% 7 » ZZ W
EEEZFRETTEZERER
BRRE -

ADRBERZZE—ZFtAN\A
RS LT WA EBRR7H4.3
¥ 7T % 17 410,000,000 & f& @
BONET LB - FISHERL
FEntBREEHNEENSE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND OTHER RESERVE (Continued)

(a)  Share capital and share premium (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(v)

The Company incurred HK$98,717,000 as share issuance costs for the
listing on the Stock Exchange in the current year, HK$2,984,000 of which
was related to inter-company transactions. As a result, the share issuance
cost for the Group was only HK$95,733,000 and the share premium was
HK$2,771,707,000 as at 31 December 2010.

Pursuant to the Shareholders’ Resolution dated 19 June 2010, the
shareholders of the Company have adopted a share option scheme (the
"Scheme"). The purpose of the Scheme is to assist in recruiting, retaining
and motivating key staff members under the terms of the Scheme. The
Directors have the discretion to grant to employees and directors of any
members of the Group an option to subscribe for shares in the Company.
The subscription price is determined on the date of grant by the Board as
an amount per share calculated from the basis of a set of established rules.
As at 31 December 2010 and up to the date of this report, no option has

been granted under the Scheme.

e BwERME

26 BAx - BthnEREMER (E)
(a) RARIK MM (1

W ()

(v)

(vi)

ARARFEER R EMER
17817 B /X 598,717,000 7T -
E 2,984,000 TEHAEMR S
BB Rt RZZE-TF+-
A=+ REEHROES
FX A {£ 595,733,000/ 7L R & 17
i 8 A2,771,707,000/8 7T °

BRE-ZT-TESATLAMNK
RAZR  ADAREDEM—
TEERETEI([518]) - %Et8l
EUREAEGIHHRE 8
BLABEERE - EF0B%
BYAREEMAAKERRNEE
RESRERARRMMER o
ROBESREREREESS
HRER B 2 BB R A
E-RZT-ZF+A=+-—
BREZAQHBE  YERE
Rt BV R ARAE -
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mEMBRERME

26 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND OTHER RESERVE (Continued)

(b)

Other reserve
The Group

The Company was incorporated on 8 March 2010. For the purpose of
the consolidated financial statements, the other reserve in the
consolidated balance sheet as of 31 December 2009 represented the
issued share capital of Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited, the then

immediate holding company of all the other subsidiaries of the Group.

Other reserve as at 31 December 2010 represents merger reserve,
being the difference between the issued share capital of Guotai Junan
(Hong Kong) Limited and the amount of share capital and share premium
of the Company transferred and issued to Guotai Junan Holdings Limited
in exchange for the entire issued share capital of Guotai Junan (Hong

Kong) Limited.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE TSR R MEE

27 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 27 BREHERH
Leases for the properties are negotiated for a term of one to three-year RENFHERHER—E=F -
periods.
At 31 December 2009 and 2010, the Group had total future minimum lease —_ERNER_T-ZFT_A=1
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: —B A% I*ET)@$EH§HE REHEER
Tk BR B R AL B T
EFEGEEMT -
2010 2009
—E-8F —TTNEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Within one year —FR [15 5527
In the second to fifth years, inclusive EF_EZHF (BEEEWSE) — 767
115 6,294
In addition to the operating lease commitments disclosed above, the Group R EXPRENLEHE AR AE
had capital commitments for renovation of premises and IT upgrade of ERBIOERARERRHIELER
approximately HK$6,750,000 which were contracted but not provided for as 7¥Wf§i"76 750,000 T + ZHBE KA
at 31 December 2010 (2009: HK$75,000). TARZZE-TF+_A=+—HFMN

BE(ZE 771¢ 75,0005 7T) ©

B=ETEBREZERERAA 155
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE MR
28 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 28 EEREREEEMS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEHE
The emoluments of every Director of the Company paid/payable by the AEBHE-_ZTNER-_T—F
Group for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2010 are set out F+-A=T—HLEFEER/E
below: NARBRBEZHME W T -
For the year ended 3| December 2010 BE-Z-Z5+-fF=t+—-HL
g
Employer’s
contribution
to pension
scheme
Salary and fEX Discretionary Other
Name of Director Director fee  commission HERHKkE bonuses benefits Total
EEnR EBHe FeRfe  HEMR BERL HeER @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR

Executive Directors: WIEE:

Yim Fung ] - 1,287 12 15,020 3513 19,832
Wong Tung Ching I4% - 1,851 12 4,800 — 6,663
Li Guangjie ERA - 1313 12 1,400 — 2,725
Li Sang, Edward £ — 1,352 12 1,400 — 2,764
Non-executive Directors; JEHTES
Chen Geng BREk 246 — — — — 246
Tsang Yiu Keung' LiEs' l6l — — — — l6
Song Ming' R l6l — - - - l6l
FuTingme BEE l6l — — — — l6l
729 5,803 48 22,620 3513 2713
' Independent Non-executive Directors ! BUERTESR

156 GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RERMEE

28 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS 28 EEREHNETEEME (£)

(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEME (B)
For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-_ZEhAE+-A=1+—-HL
FE
Employer’s
contribution
to pension
scheme
Salary and EX Discretionary Other
Name of Director Director fee  commission HERE bonuses benefits Total
Esps Exne Hekfe  HEMX BRRA HeEA @t

HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER

Executive Directors: WTEE

Yim Fung B — 1,485 12 7,581 4235 23313
Wong Tung Ching I%5 — 1241 12 3200 — 4453
Li Guangjie S — 1,065 12 2200 — 3277
Li Sang, Edward x5 — 1,248 12 1,600 — 2,860
Non-executive Directors: FEHLITES :
Chen Geng BREk = = - - - —
Tsang Yiu Keung BiEg! = = = = = =
Song Ming R = = = = = =
Fu Tingmel' EEx = = = = = =
= 5039 48 24581 4235 33903
During 2009 and 2010, no Directors, supervisors or senior management RZZEZNFR_Z-TF  HE
of the Company waived any emoluments and no emolument were paid ARAIESE BEFSREEEN
by the Company to any of the directors, supervisors or senior ZEMME  MARFNERER
management as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as 5 ESYRAEREXNEM
compensation for loss of office. e EREERFMALEMA

AEEBONE N IERBBREE -

B=ETEBREZERERAA 157
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e mERMEE

28 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
(b)  Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid employees during the year included one Director
for the year ended 2009 and 2010, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 28(a) above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining
four non-directors, highest paid employees for the years ended 3|

December 2010 and 2009 are as follows:-

28 EEREREEEMSE (&)

(b) EEREHMAL

N
il

FRLNGRFHEENBE_F
FNER-F-FFF-_A=1—
ALFEEBE-—REE  EHFMF
BERN £ T280) c BEZT—
ZER-_ZENEF-A=1—H
LFEEERNLFEERAFTME

EMNHMFRENT

2010 2009

—E-EF —EENF

HK$°000 HK$'000

TER TET

Salary and commission Fekfe 33,417 32,796
Employer's contribution EFRKSFHEMHK

to pension scheme 48 48

Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 5,700 1,800

39,165 34,644

No emoluments have been paid to these individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office

during 2009 and 2010.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RERMEE

28 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS 28 EEREHNETEEME (£)

(Continued)
(b)  Five highest paid individuals (b) EEEFHFMAL
The emoluments of the remuneration highest-paid individuals of the AEEESHEMALTHBMEN TN
Group fall within the following bands: THE :
2010 2009
—E-%F —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAET
Emolument bands Bl < &5 [
- HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 — 5,000,001 /BT E 5,500,000 8 7T — |
- HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 — 6,500,001 7T = 7,000,000 % 7T I |
- HK$9,000,001 to HK$9,500,000 — 9,000,001 &L E 9,500,000 7T I —
- HK$10,500,001 to HK$ 11,000,000  — 10,500,001 & L& 11,000,000 /& T I —
- HK$11,000,001 to HK$ 11,500,000  — 11,000,001 872 11,500,000 7 7T — 2
- HK$12,000,001 to HK$12,500,000  — 12,000,001 B T ZE 12,500,000 8 7T I —
4 4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e mERMEE

29 CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

29 REEBHELANRERE

2010 2009
i ZETNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT TET
Cash flows from operating activities REFHELENRERE
(for continuing and (MRHBLEEBR
discontinued operations) BRIEEEER)
Profit before income tax BR BT 15 L A4 A 288,407 329,310
Adjustments for: AR
Depreciation e 19,208 10,621
Finance costs A KA 4,142 5,168
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HERETEEERE 82 —
Impairment charge/ (write back) of FE Y T IE R B
provision for accounts receivable Y B (BE) 10,006 (1,847)
Realised gain on available-for-sale A HERER
investments S e — (3,616)
Gain on re-measurement of assets/liabilities E ¥T#T EFERFE A
classified as held for sale BE/ BBl — (5,687)
Foreign exchange gains on & EEH
operating activities SN U 2 — (339)
321,845 333614
Decrease/(increase)in financial assets at BATEFABRN
fair value through profit or loss SMEERML (Em) 8,468 (186,612)
(Increase)/decrease in other assets HiwgEE (gm) R (30) 160
Increase in loans and advances to customers % T % = 8 & 5% & B 5058 A (1,115,163) (492,083)
Increase in accounts receivable & W R IE S A (611,327) (29,307)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, BNRIE - Re REM
deposits and other receivables fEM KR (3Em) Rd (4,867) 1,539
Increase in client trust bank balances P EFERITERIE N (195,728) (1,503,449)
Decrease in amount due to FERTRRHTB AT
fellow subsidiaries TR (645) (4.424)
Decrease in amounts due from JE W SR R IR A B
ultimate holding company RIER D — 880
Decrease in amounts due to B FR AR R A ]
ultimate holding company B D (578) -

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29 CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

e BwERME

29 RETHELNRERE (&)

2010 2009
—E-%% —
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT TET
Decrease in amounts due from e
fellow subsidiaries RIER D = 96,243
Decrease/(increase) in amount due from  FEUAH M IZER A F]
intermediate holding company FIEEM (RD) 359 (270)
Increase in accounts payable FE ST IR G N 823,725 1,498,952
(Decrease)/increase in other payables H A & R o
and accrued liabilities FExtEE CR) /Em (32,190) 78,043
Increase in net assets attributable to EEAEEN:Y 3
redeemable participation rights BEFEEM — 89,760
Cash used in operations REXBHRE R (806,131) (116954)
Interest paid ERFE (4,142) (5,168)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BEREEMEH (34,987) (25,946)
Net cash outflow from operating activities A& /& BT H IR SN EFHE (845,260) (148,068)
Cash flows from operating REFHHNRERE
activities included: B
- Interest received —EHRFE 98,217 71,844
- Dividend received —BKRE 4,202 4223
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e mERMEE

30 DISPOSAL OF DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 30 HECRIEERR
The details of assets and liabilities disposed and the disposal consideration are HEEEREBRNFBEREEREN
as follows: %
As at
30 October
2009
R=ZBENF
+HA=+H
HK$’000
TERT
Office equipment WAERE 30
Available-forsale investments AHERE 16,699
Accounts receivable i Y 8 9,796
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BENE - He REMEKRKIE 2,007
Assets classified as held for sale RFIEGENERE 8,449
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BATEAABRNESREE 251,010
Cash and bank balances Re kTS 36,652
Accounts payable JE 1~ RIE (7.117)
Amount due to the fellow subsidiaries NI E NG (95,655)
Net assets attributable to redeemable EEAEE R 3
participation rights BEERE (171,222
Liabilities classified as held for sale RIEGENEE (494)
Current income tax liabilities & 51 75 3% (1,108)
Other payables and accrued liabilities HAth FE < FRIE ] FE 5T R (1,251
Total consideration paid ER@ERE 47,796
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEENRAREFE
Cash consideration ReKE 47,796
Bank balances and cash disposed of BEHERTEHRKLIRS (36,652)
[1,144
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MATURITY PROFILE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
An analysis of the maturity profile of certain assets and liabilities of the Group
analyzed by the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual

maturity date is as follows:-

31

e BwERME

EEREBENIGER
AEEETEAERAGREEREZSN
IHMBEMmHREE BB TN
™

Up to | month I-3 months  3-12 months Total
TEANT 1-318 A 3-12 18 A £y
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER THER THER THER
As at 3| December 2010 R=-Z—FF
+=ZA=+—8H
Loans and advances BYTRFHERRER
to customers 1,975,894 — — 1,975,894
Accounts receivable JE W ZR 8 904,138 30,343 1,102 935,583
Client trust bank balances REETRITER 5,648,532 223,439 3,000 5,874,971
Cash and bank balances Re MIEITHES 396,628 45,003 — 441,631
8,925,192 298,785 4,102 9,228,079
Accounts payable JETFIR 6,778,940 — — 6,778,940
As at 3| December 2009 R=-ZERE
+=ZA=+—8H
Loans and advances BYTRFHERRER
to customers 758,276 102,455 — 860,731
Accounts receivable JFE Wy 2k TE 328,177 — 6,085 334,262
Client trust bank balances REEEERITER 5,378,992 300,251 — 5,679,243
Cash and bank balances Re MIRITHES 390,284 70,000 — 460,284
6,855,729 472,706 6,085 7,334,520
Bank borrowings FITIER 300,000 200,000 — 500,000
Accounts payable JE A R 5,955,215 — — 5955215
6,255215 200,000 — 6,455,215
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32 BHRAERS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the
other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common

significant influence.

MER—FAERARMEEHNR—T7
FEHR-TNHBEREERREEAY
7 BB - AR —J7TME
HRXEATE - TEEK) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e mERMEE

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 32 BYAERS (B)

(2) In addition to the transactions and balances set out elsewhere in the @) BREEHBHRERATFARIN
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following material R BB NEBRNFRER
transactions with related parties during the year. BAETUTERRS

Note 2010 2009
oy —E-EF —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Commission expenses to the X FEREERA

ultimate holding company FEEARET (i) (5,867) (4,628)

Consultancy fee paid to XA FREKE AR
a fellow subsidiary R (ii) (9,600) (8,800)

Management fee and performance fee FAZAEE B A7) E 12
income from a private fund managed R EIEIZRE X & EIER

by a subsidiary of the Group 22 | ) B B A 2 MY

and controlled by GJFHL EBRERRRBKRA (iif) 9,045 1,322
Commission income from a private Pl ALEE S WEA A S A

fund mentioned in note (iii) B | S (i) (iv) 100 84
Management fee and performance AASE2EMBARIER

fee income of a private fund REBERELZERBER

managed by a wholly owned 2 LS E S WS

subsidiary of the Group BEERERRRBLA

and controlled by GJFHL v) 7,325 3,037
Total fees received from a PRt EES WM AE KA

private fund mentioned in note (v) B _E ST R (v) (vi) 2,061 1,931
Management fee and performance fee HIAEE 2B A RE R

income of a private fund and a EEIEEA )= PNGIE $-X:0

public fund managed by a wholly RERLEES RN

owned subsidiary of the Group BEEERRRERA

and invested by a fellow subsidiary (vii) 5,828 1,792
Commission income of the investment F _E 3CF 5 (vii) BT it 1% &

funds mentioned in note (vii) ElgBm e A (viif) 336 78
Commission income from key HAKETZEERAS

management personnel of the Group  WEREI{B & U A (iX) 5 8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(i)

(i

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

Commission expenses to the ultimate holding company was calculated based on
30% of commission income earned from clients trading Shenzhen and Shanghai B

shares.

Consultancy fee for the provision of the capital market information was charged
at HK$400,000 per month for the year ended 31 December 2009 and
HK$800,000 per month for the year ended 31 December 2010 while
HK$4,000,000 was charged for the provision of promotional services in relation

to the IPO projects for the year ended 31 December 2009.

Management fee income and performance fee income received from a private
fund managed by a subsidiary of the Group and controlled by GJFHL were
charged at 1.25% per annum of the net asset value at the last working day of each
month and 20% of the positive increment in the net asset value for the years
ended 31 December 2009 and 2010.

Commission income received from a private fund mentioned in note (iii) was

charged at 0.125% of the transaction value.

Management fee income and performance fee income received from a private
fund managed by a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group and controlled by
GJFHL were charged at 1.5% per annum of the net asset value at the last working
day of each month and 20% of the positive increment in the net asset value for
the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2010.

Total fees received from a private fund mentioned in note (v) included
commission income which was charged at 0.25% of the transaction value and
interest income which was charged at annual rate of 3% over the best lending
rate on Hong Kong dollars quoted by the Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong)

Limited on its overdue amount and other handling income.

Management fee income and performance fee income received from a private
fund and a public fund managed by a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group and
invested by a fellow subsidiary were charged at 0.75% to 1.5% per annum of the
net asset value of the fund at the last working day of each month and 20% to
25% of the positive increment in the net asset value for the years ended 3|
December 2009 and 2010.

e BwERME

32 BBRAERS (&

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

XN FREERDANEER RS
BPERZRYI R LB AT R £ W

AHI30%:TE

BE-ZTNFT-A=+-HIFE
RREERTZENNEREREAR
400,000 THER - MRBE-T—F
F+ZA=+t-BLEFEAREA
800,000 T E : REE-TTNF
tZAZ+-RLEFERBERAHEE
I8 B 1R 469 B AR % 124,000,0007%5 7T
Y ER

RARENBAREERAERELS
BEREHNOLEESRBOERBIK
ARFRRBUARBE-_TTNAFR=
T-ZF+-A=+-HULFEEAR
FE—EIEANEEFETF.25%M
REEFEEMN20%KE

B KRG T AR E S WA A
W AIRZ ZEN0.125% W E -

RAKEZENBRAEEREERE
ZEBRERIZHOLSESRRMER
BUARERBUAZBEZ-ZTNE
RZZ-ZF+-A=+-HLEES
Ak BAIEEMNEEFESH
1.5% A REEFEZMN20%KE

eVt RELEESNREHAE
AL WA (R 5E/M0.25%:1H) kFl
BUWA (BB BHEFE  FHEARE
TR (BB ER DR RNORESF
EHNMN3%) REAMFEEUWA

AALE 2 AN B DA E R KR R
BRARENAERABESYWBNE
BEYPARKRBRARBE_TEAN

E&f7 TZE+-R=+—HBILFE
ARG —BIBNEEFESE

0.75215% A REEFEBEEMNI20%
5% U E o
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mEMBRERME

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(viii)

(ix)

(i)

(xii)

(xii

(xiv)

Commission income received from investment funds mentioned in note (vii) was
charged at percentage stated on the respective signed brokerage agreements with

another wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.

Commission income received from key management personnel of the Group
were charged at percentage stated on the respective signed brokerage agreement

with another wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.

Included in the Group's accounts payable is a broker payable due to the ultimate
holding company of HK$37,530,000 and HK$31,059,000 arising from the dealing
in securities as at 31 December 2009 and 2010 respectively. The balance is
unsecured, interest-free and payable on the settlement day under the relevant

market practices.

Included in the Group's accounts receivable is a broker receivable due from the
ultimate holding company of HK$40,034,000 and HK$50,155,000 arising from the
dealing in securities as at 31 December 2009 and 2010 respectively. The credit
terms provided to the ultimate holding company are consistent with the practice
of the securities dealing industry. The balance is unsecured, interest-free and

payable on the settlement day under the relevant market practices.

Included in the accounts receivable are management fee and performance fee
receivables due from investment funds managed by the Group and invested by a
fellow subsidiary of GJFHL of HK$ 1,562,000 and HK$ 12,780,000 arising from the
provision of asset management services as at 31 December 2009 and 2010
respectively. The balances are unsecured, interest-free and receivable monthly in

arrears.

Included in the client trust bank balance is deposit from key management
personnel of the Group of HK$ 112,000 as at 31 December 2010.

Included in the Group's accounts payable is the accounts payable to investment
funds mentioned in note (iii) and (vii) arising from dealing in securities in an
aggregate amount of HK$29,912,000 and HK$44,451,000 as at 31 December
2009 and 2010 respectively. The Group has a practice to satisfy all requests for

payment immediately within | business day.
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32 BBAERS (8)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

A b 2B A (vi) A 4% 2B A e MR ER 9 £
EUAREERER S -2 EWB QA
RUMNZDELHERD A2 LR -

AAEETZEEABRBNBSIA
REAAEES-2EMBARRIN
BB HETAE D AR -

%EE%WHWﬂTQ Al
1837,630,0007% 7L 231,059, 000%%750
REBEATZES - ZEHARERA -

RERNEEBEM -

AEENEYFEARER _FTNER
“E-ZFE+t-_A=+-REEEHD
PIEANRRFEERARCLERR

1540,034,0007% 7T 250,155,000/ 7T °
RAFRERARRANERRREES
BEETEMEN % - REMETSE
bl ZEHREER  RERRERA
JEft o

BUSFEBRR_ZTAFR_F-F
FH-A=t-BRUBEEERES
PIEANRREAREEERAERE
ZEBERRAANBLARRENREE
EMEEREFERRAEBRA
1,662,000/ 7T % 12,780,000/ 7T ° %
BHRDEER  LERRE AR -

EEEARAEHRBERGAEELE
ERABR-_ZT-ZF+-_A=+—H
#7270112,0008 7T ©

$%Iﬁﬁm BERZZZNEFRZ
—LTET-A=T-HARFRF8
%§29,912,000;%75&44,451,000;%75%
B 7E A TEA b SO R i) B2 (vi) PP 42 4
EeMzUE - AEEEREIEZ R
WENREEFTE R EK o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RERMEE

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(®)

(xv) Included in the Group's account receivable is the accounts receivable from the xv) ASERERBFEBEEER-ZTNER=
private fund mentioned in note (v) of HK$8,274,000 and HK$ 15,869,000 as at 31 Z-TE+-AZ+-HARIEKREX
December 2009 and 2010 respectively. BT 5 (v) T 2t 7L 2 2 6 A 7038 8,274,000

7T 515,869,000 7T °
The carrying amount of the Group’s balances with its ultimate holding b) AEEEEFKERAF] - FNHE
company, intermediate holding company and fellow subsidiaries are B NGVEES NS0k S0 2
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The carrying amount HERAEER £ EURBREE
approximates to its fair value as at each balance sheet date. B -REFFENEEERERT
EHEE -
The remuneration of the key management personnel of the Group was () FAEEEXREBRABHHMWT :
as follows:-
2010 2009
—2-%F —ETNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TET
Salary and commission Fekfe 7,157 6,296
Employer’s contribution EERASFEHER
to pension scheme 60 60
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 24,520 26,581
Other benefits AR H 3,513 4235
35,250 37,172

32 BBERS (8)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e mERMEE

33 CRITICALACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES 33 EASHHERME

The Group's consolidated financial statements are influenced by accounting AEENGEUBREZGHBE &

policies, assumptions, estimates and management’s judgments which necessarily REeMBRRBRTELNRE &

have to be made in the course of preparation of the consolidated financial AREEBBHEYE -

statements.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts AEEEREERE T —EMBEER

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and judgments BERBREHENMG RRE - fFtk

are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other HEERETRRARLER R EME

factors, including expectations of future events. EREL  BEHRREMHMNEL -

Accounting policies and management’s judgments for certain items are RASENEERMBRATNE - AR

especially critical for the Group's results and financial situation due to their ETEAENSBEN (MTXM) - &

materiality in amount and are discussed below. HedRRREBRBANLABE -

(a) Taxes (a) WA
Significant judgement is required in determining the provisions for EEMEHRAMRERERS
income and other taxes. There are transactions and calculations for which EHERE - R—BREKBRE
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of f SRS RAREEERENRE
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues R Eﬁ@ﬁ%m AEEFRES
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the %RW%V%E( TEREBIN
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that IR R BRA { o fid A % F &I
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and MEERERYIHNEEEE
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is 2 AEBEEEBRENMEL KRR
made. ENHRATEMEHIETH A

B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

33 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b)  Estimation of realisability of deferred tax assets

Determining income tax provisions involves judgment on the future tax
treatment of certain transactions. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly. The
tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take
into account all changes in tax legislations. As those deferred tax assets
on tax losses can only be recognized to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax
credits can be utilized. Management's judgment is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management's assessment is
constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are recognized if it
becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

As at 31 December 2009 and 2010, the Group has not recognized
deferred tax on tax losses of approximately HK$49 million and HK$26.3
million respectively arising from the subsidiaries of the Group which
management considers that it is not probable for the said subsidiaries to
have sufficient future taxable profit to utilize the deferred tax benefit in
the future. Should the Group consider these subsidiaries can generate
available future taxable profit to fully utilize the deferred tax benefit, the
Group would recognize deferred tax assets of approximately HK$8
million and HK$4.3 million as at 31 December 2009 and 2010

respectively.

e BwERME

33 BAGRABRMEE (&)

(b)

CLGE-EF 3130030

EEMEHARIREETRSA
EUMBRENFIE AEERER
BRPUMBOTE  WRILITY
BIERE -  HZERHNRBER
SEMEMZE - T RBEBED
HIMEEE -BAREEHEEEMN
REBERBRERTEESENA

ZABAVIEE R 8RR ERD R
MET SRR MUFEEEEE
BTG RRIERT 6 M B AT B 1L -

BEEN AT MR -
EARERDOGMERLEREEE

B o g - e mREI
ELERBEEE -

RIEENFR-_F-ZTF+ A
=+t—H A£E Iﬂﬁmﬁgﬁ
BRAEENBAREEMELER

BARK40BEEETLR263EERE
Lo BERERBLAMBARTK
A RAERRERTER
AR A R E) AR E BB A5
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂxaﬁwgﬂu%ﬁi

YA EETE T IEN &= 00K R E
ﬁmﬁﬂ BIRE B KD HIRRR
“ETNERZT-TFF+ A=
T-BREEREEENSBEAT
R43HEEET -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERME

33 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment allowances on loans and receivables

The Group reviews its loans and accounts receivable to assess
impairment at least on a monthly basis. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement, the Group
makes judgements as to whether there is any observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows.
This evidence may include observable data indicating that there has been
an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in the Group.
Management use estimates based on historical loss experience when
scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used
for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are
reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and
actual loss experience. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will affect the carrying value of loans
and receivables and thus impairment charge in the period in which such

estimate is changed.

Held-to-maturity investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity as
held-to-maturity. This classification requires significant judgment. In making
this judgment, the Group evaluates its intention and ability to hold such
investments to maturity. If the Group fails to keep these investments to
maturity other than for the specific circumstances — for example, selling
an insignificant amount close to maturity — it will be required to reclassify
the entire class as available-for-sale. The investments would therefore be

measured at fair value not amortized cost.
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33 BAGRAMKRME (E)

(c)

(d)

B REN B ERE

AEERVEA-RBRIAEERR
W RAEFERE - REESD
ERERFAREBERS  KA&E
PREDEAFNERINENBRRG
AARREREHRATEE D
fEHAIE - ERAUBRARLER
BRAKBERERANETMKRE T
MEL - EREARARRER -
EEERBBABRERIELTE
Al e MERRE R E BB N
FAENTERBREE SRR - A
BREGREBREERBR ANE
B ERRARNRREGE B
BEZEMTEERREYRENK
HE SRt B2 ARG EH
fERX -

HEIHRE

AEBEBEEEGTEEIGEM
HeI N BABETEHA TEENK
REEHHANFTLESREER
HEIH - -2 BRELEKRH
B o ML HETR - REBEFEE
RARSEEENHZER R
N WAKERESALFRER
HH (T RERRER - flnER
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